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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)
BERBERZARA BB AIERU BIER]) 2458

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole
or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading;

(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading, and

(3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at
after due and careful consideration and are founded on the
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE PROFILE A &N

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past decade through the introduction of
a series of innovative health and beauty treatment and products
as well as the provision of the most professional and attentive
slimming and trimming solution to its customers. The Group was
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is
the first listed slimming and beauty company in Hong Kong.

The Group has nine slimming and beauty centres with three in
Hong Kong and six in Mainland China including two in Beijing,
two in Shanghai, one in Shenzhen and one in Hangzhou. All these
centers provide unique all-rounded personalized slimming and
beauty services, which include the “VIP Slimming Programmes”,
“Radio Frequency Firming and Recovery Treatment”, “Coenzyme
10 Time Reversal Skincare Treatment” and the latest “Micro
needle Therapy System”. Combining the effective treatments and
comprehensive follow up, all programmes enable customers to
achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body shape in the
healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for
its outstanding products and services and received numerous
accolades during the years of which included “Body Specialist
2009” by Marie Claire Magazine, “The Most Popular Slimming
Treatment Award” by ReadyGo Magazine and honor to be the
“Caring Company” for three consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in September 2005
who distributes P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai and
cosmetic and skin care products with famous brands like SK-II
and Olay in the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With
years of development, the distribution network is well developed
and with the additions of other famous brands such as Philips
Lighting products, Gillette Men series, Dunhill fragrance, Gucci
fragrance, etc., the growth of turnover as well as the number of
distribution points is impressive.
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CORPORATE PROFILE A &N

In 2006 & 2007, the Group has successfully opened two beauty RIZZEZRNEN_ZEZT+HF - REBKIIAM
and slimming centres in Vancouver, Canada and in Shenzhen, SREFERTEFYIFEEMEER L EH
PRC. This marked a crucial start for the Group’s new type of Do ERHEAERERELARGEBENES
business, namely, the management consultation service. The HRMEZERG WEFKFCARERASE
characteristic of this business is that a fee will be received for the mEETEMZHERERER  WHRERZRAERE
using of our brand name and logo and subsequently a monthly AR LHESEHESIBHMNKEFAEESE - A5
management fee will also be received based on the turnover B’\\;B” REARBREF L FEBEXNLAER

or profit of such beauty centre. Unlike the previous beauty and VHEERERESRE  EmtEE —FHBRIR
slimming centres which required heavy investment initially, this E$%@E’UHQ}\ o

business model secured the Group’s income in the first day of the

project.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY f F B #E &

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E2-EZF —EThE —TTN\F —ETLF ZTTREF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEr FET FET
(Note)
(K7t
Turnover =ES] 470,725 437,916 446,821 443,588 358,650
Cost of sales SHEMA (389,006) (359,450) (344,809) (348,164) (276,363)
Gross profit EF 81,719 78,466 102,012 95,424 82,287
Other revenue and o oz RUA
net income Pt 2,171 1,237 4,727 7,408 7,784
Selling and distribution SHE RS A
costs (61,211) (63,081) (63,491) (65,370) (92,359)
General and administrative —#& R1TEFIX
expenses (50,957) (45,186) (39,115) (45,505) (52,467)
Other operating expenses ~ EAAE&FHY = - - (7) (3,770)
(Loss)/profit from & (B8R BA
operations (28,278) (28,564) 4,133 (8,050) (58,525)
Finance costs BEKE (1,248) (1,579) (941) (666) (144)
Share of profits/(losses)  fE{L L FEIFEH|EEE
of jointly controlled BH,/ (&18)
entities 2,858 (3,277) — — -
(Loss)/profit before BBAT (B1R)
taxation B (26,668) (38,420) 3,192 (8,716) (58,669)
Income tax expenses FT{SBiF s (2,154) (1,039) (1,358) (7,231) (2,759)
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (F18) /Bl (28,822) (34,459) 1,839 (15,947) (61,428)
Non-current assets FRBEE 24,129 29,364 22,987 20,228 23,562
Current assets REBEE 127,223 117,669 144,496 88,265 73,425
Current liabilities FEAE (72,194) (88,484) (77,443) (82,553) (61,300)
Net current assets REBEEFHE 55,029 29,185 67,053 5,712 12,125
Non-current liabilities *nBaE (3,380) (3,563) (3,041) (232) —
Net assets BEEFHE 75,778 54,986 86,999 25,708 35,687
Capital and reserves BERR#E
Equity attributable to /NS
equity shareholders of BEAEN
the Company s 55,765 31,108 58,141 9,072 30,356
Minority interests DB R 20,013 23,878 28,858 16,636 5,331
Total equity RS A%E 75,778 54,986 86,999 25,708 35,687

Note: As a result of the correction of prior period error in respect of equity-
settled share-based payment transactions in 2008, the fair value of the
share options granted amounting to HK$1,558,000 had been recognised
in the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2005 with a
corresponding increase in share-based payment reserve in accordance
with HKFRS 2, Share-based payment. There is no net effect to the net
assets and total equity for any period presented.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#RE

| hereby present the annual report to the shareholders of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2010 (the “Year Under Review”) on behalf of the Board of
Directors.

In the Year Under Review, the international economy is in the
midst of a severe recession in sharp contrast to the positive
growth trend, which averaged 4% during the period 2000 to 2008.
This downturn in the global economy was propelled by the 2008
U.S. financial crisis. The U.S. financial crisis peaked in late 2008
and has since spread, across borders and sectors becoming a
financial and economic crisis globally.

More importantly, domestic demand lost much of its momentum
with weaker consumer and investor sentiments due to tighter
credit market, gloomy job prospects and negative wealth effect
from the correction in local asset markets. For 2009 as a whole,
the Hong Kong economy contracted by 2.7%, the first annual
recession since 1998.

However, even though in such a difficult business environment, the
turnover still has a satisfactory growth of 7% from approximately
HK$437,916,000 in the corresponding period in last year to
approximately HK$470,725,000 in the Year Under Review.

In September 2009, the Company successfully completed an
open offer of raising net proceeds of approximately HK$46 million.
The response from market is so intense, during the 2 weeks of the
application period, we received not only 679 valid applications of
Offer Shares, but also received more than 700 valid applications
of over 65 billion Offer Shares for the excess Offer Shares,
representing more than 200 times of Offer Shares for excess
applications. This encouraging result reflected the shareholders
of the Company are highly confident with the Group future
prospects.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FfE#HRE

In Hong Kong, our slimming services are highly reputed in the
slimming and beauty industry. In the past decade, we introduced
many beauty services which are recognized as high quality and
among them, some are exclusively and firstly introduced by
us, creating awareness in the industry. Our mission is to tailor
made all kinds of beauty services especially for Asian ladies,
combining traditional Chinese medicine science high-tech western
technology, with our professional knowledge and techniques,
to deliver the best services to our customers. During the Year
Under Review, we launched a wide variety of new and highly
praised services, such as “Lipo Fat Diminishing Treatment”,
“PRP Plasmatic Derma-Revive Treatment”, etc.. Moreover, we will
continuously update with new treatments and new technology
available to provide our clients with more variety of beauty and
slimming choices. And again this year, being awarded by Yahoo!
for the “Yahoo! Emotive Award” as well as the “2009 ReadyGo
Beauty Service Award — Most Favourable and Outstanding
Slimming Treatment” by ReadyGo Magazine, further proven the
Group is highly supported by the public.

For the PRC market, our beauty, slimming and spa centres in
Beijing did a wonderful job in the Year Under Review, both the
turnover and profit contributions to the Group have improved
satisfactory. In Shanghai with intense competitions, contributed
by the successful marketing strategies and our professional
services, we have been locally recognized as a “Star” brandname
in Shanghai. While in Shenzhen and Hangzhou, our centres have
already entered the local markets, gained customer’s loyalty and
established local presence.

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s turnover reached
approximately HK$470,725,000, a 7% increase from that of
HK$437,916,000 approximately during the corresponding period
last year. Turnover generated from the beauty, slimming and
spa centers in Hong Kong and in Mainland China amounted to
approximately HK$66,349,000, comparable to the corresponding
period in 2009 (HK$70,290,000 approximately). On the other
hand, the product distribution business in Mainland China grew
remarkably. In the Year Under Review, the turnover amounted
to approximately HK$403,222,000, compared to approximately
HK$364,985,000 in the corresponding period in last year, the
growth is more than 10%.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#RE

During the Year Under Review, our Group has incurred a
loss attributable to equity shareholders of approximately
HK$24,957,000 which is greatly reduced from approximately
HK$30,651,000 of the corresponding period in 2009. The hard
business environment, the drastic competition in the market
and making impairment losses provisions for deposits and
receivables contribute most to the loss. However, thanks to the
efforts contributed from all our staff and the strict cost control
implemented, the magnitude of loss is being controlled and which
reflected our ability to adapt to adverse situation.

In addition to overcome various problems as mentioned above, the
Group has actively explored potential new income stream. In late
2008, we launched an innovative “Online Click and Buy” online
booking system to fulfill and cater for the changing customer’s
demands. During the Year Under Review, the online booking
system has been further expanded to cover all our beauty,
slimming and spa centres in Mainland China. In the near future,
we will invest more resources to diversify our e-business. In Hong
Kong, we are the first beauty and slimming services provider to
provide one-stop online booking platform to customers.

Over the years, the “Sau San Tong” brandname is firmly
established in both Hong Kong and the PRC with services and
treatments that leads the beauty and slimming industry. During
the Year Under Review, the Group was awarded “Most Favorable
Enterprise with Good Credibility 2009” by China Enterprise
Reputation & Credibility Association, “The Ten Most Influential
Entrepreneurs of China Brand Building 2009” by The Board
of Ten Influential China Brands, “2009 Yahoo! Emotive Brand
Award — Beauty and Fitness Centre Category” by YAHOO!, etc..
Besides, the Group was awarded with Caring Company Logo by
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service and to participate in
the School-Company Partnership Program organized by Young
Entrepreneurs Development Council in the Year Under Review to
honour the Group’s contribution to the society. All these awards
and recognitions helped the Group in strengthening its corporate
image in Hong Kong as well as in Mainland China.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FfE#HRE

The Group excelled by the ability to stay ahead of the market.
Over the years, the Group has introduced many innovative
beauty and slimming products to Hong Kong. These beauty and
slimming products enables the Group to gain additional market
share as well as strengthened its brandname. For the years to
come, the Group will continue its effort in the product distribution
market, especially in the Mainland China. At present, the Group
already has the distribution network for distributing mainly P&G
personal care products in Shanghai and P&G’s cosmetic and
skin care products, including SK-Il and Olay in the eastern and
western part of the PRC. Besides, we also distributed Gillette Men
series, Philips Lighting products and many world famous prestige
fragrance brands, such as Dunhill, BOSS, Gucci, ESCADA,
etc., to diversify our product types and uplifting our competitive
edge. In near future, the Group will utilize its already established
distribution network in Mainland China to distribute our other
beauty and health products. The management is confident that
this segment of the Group’s business will become a revenue driver
in the coming years.

Following the development of the PRC business gradually
become mature, together with our proactive company culture
and the experience accumlated over the years, we have been
fully equipped with the PRC market dynamics and consumption
patterns of different provinces. As such, the Group believes the
keypoints of the PRC market expansion have been mastered.
Now, we are ready to go to bring our shareholders enter into the
Blue Ocean new era.

In the coming years, the Group will continue to focus its effort
in the Mainland China market which proves to have enormous
potential. The Group will continue to provide the most professional
and attentive services to its customers and enhancing brand
awareness. The management believes the broadening of the PRC
market empowers the Group in confident to become the market
leader of slimming and beauty industry, as well as to further
ensure the leading status of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE#RE

On behalf of the board of Directors, | would like to express my RAAERERESS  BRBSHERE BERE BT
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, staff and &%7}5‘1)\{$;T$El57¢2(ﬁ’]35h&1éﬁ o 7R
Z

business partners for their support and trust to the Group. With RE - BETBMB - AEEEBBER
our persistent effort, | have confident that the Group will achieve XT—?Z““%EPE W AZBIRETRE R E
steady growth in the future and provide satisfactory return for all iR e

shareholders.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley e
Chairman [
Hong Kong, 14 June 2010 BB —E—TFATMA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIEEssmE 5 47

Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2010 (“the Year Under Review”),
turnover amounted to approximately HK$470,725,000, representing
an increase of 7% from approximately HK$437,916,000 in last
year. Such increase was mainly due to the remarkable growth in
the distribution sales of our Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co.
Ltd. (“Dong Fang”). On the other hand, even though the rivalry in
the slimming and beauty industry is so intense, the Group still can
manage to sustain the revenue performance of all the slimming
centres in both Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) during the Year Under Review. During the Year Under Review,
turnover from the distribution business amounted to approximately
HK$403,222,000 (2009: approximately HK$364,985,000), while
the turnover generated from all the beauty, slimming and spa
centres in Hong Kong and in the PRC amounted to approximately
HK$66,349,000 (2009: approximately HK$70,290,000).

During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded an increase
of approximately HK$3,253,000 in gross profit. The Group has
incurred a loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$24,957,000 (2009: approximately HK$30,651,000).
As mentioned before, the competition and the business environment
of the slimming and beauty market is drastic and extreme, in
order to maintain our competitive edge, the Group strengthened
its existing policy of exercising tight control over all its costs, and
reducing these wherever possible. During the Year Under Review,
the administrative expenses (including provision for impairment
losses) totalling amount to HK$50,957,000. Apart from the above
provision, the administrative expenses have been slightly increased
from approximately HK$41,052,000 of 2009 to approximately
HK$41,571,000. Notwithstanding of the significant increase in turnover,
the administrative expenses are comparable to that of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE[E

During the Year Under Review, our jointly controlled entities
mark a vast turnaround in performance. The share of profits of
the jointly controlled entities is HK$2,858,000 approximately in
contrast to the share of losses of HK$3,277,000 approximately in
the year 2009.

By refreshing change and diversification of business, Sau San
Tong is continued to be the leader of the industry providing the
most quality and professional services to its customers.

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

For Hong Kong, the Group providing not only slimming services
but also a variety of non-slimming services. In addition to a
range of comprehensive beauty and health services and the
successfully launch of “M.Nano Cavitation slimming treatment”
and “HA+ Hyaluronic Moisture treatment” as well as certain other
innovative treatments in last year, the Group continues to explore
the new cosmetological technology. This year, the Group has
launched a series of innovative technological cosmetic treatments,
including “Lipo Fat Diminishing Treatment”, “Thermalift Ultra-
Firm Treatment” and “PRP Plasmatic Derma-Revive Treatment”,
etc. “Lipo Fat Diminishing Treatment” using the hi-tech PPC
fat-removal essence and the technique of LipoFit™ Cavitation
to create an unique low frequency and stable cavitation force
to dissolve fat painlessly, thoroughly and instantly. The Group
believes that with these new treatments, the profitability as well as
the market leadership can be strengthened.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE[E

China’s vast slimming and beauty market is growing fast. The
female population aged between 15 and 64 in China currently
exceeds 470 million, which is larger than the combined total of
Europe, the US and Japan. As income levels continue to rise,
mainland female consumers’ demands for high-end slimming and
beauty services is bound to increase further. Besides, government
supervision of the beauty sector is expected to tighten, further
squeezing the low-end operators out of the market. The Group
entered into PRC market long time ago, we built up our prestige
brand, opened deluxe beauty, slimming and spa centres in major
cities and developed the strong distribution sales network. All
these moves proven our long-term vision and strategy are on the
right track. The Group keeps on seeking opportunities to open
new beauty, slimming and spa centres in potential cities in the
PRC and the distribution of beauty products in order to capture
the untapped market.

In late 2008, the Group introduced the innovative idea of “One-
stop” Online Booking to all our customers around the World.
Customers can select the date, time, location and
treatment all on their own needs and even to pay via
our online payment system. The newly launched
service can fulfill the customer’s reluctance to
exhausting hard-selling strategy and prepayment
practice, and we firmly believe this will bring the
beauty and slimming industry to new era. In the
near future, we will further enhance the online
shopping platform to our wide range of health and
beauty products to bring more convenience and
healthy e-lifestyle to our valuable customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIEEssmE 5 47

Management Consultation Services

Being the leading beauty and slimming services provider,
our Group has accumulated a wealth of experience in the
management and operation of beauty, slimming and spa centres
as well as high caliber professionals from the industry. In order
to capitalize its existing resources, the Group has embarked the
provision of management consultation services for the setting up
beauty, slimming and spa centres.

In year 2008, our Group successful developed new income stream
by partnered New World Group and Sinolink Group to develop
clubhouses and spa beauty centres for luxury estates in PRC.
Benefit from this experience, we are now confident in exploring
further opportunities from such income in future.

The Group is confident that there will be an immense demand for this
kind of services in the PRC since the beauty and slimming market
there is still under developed with a shortage of expertise. Also,
provision of this kind of services command not much overhead costs
and thus contributing to a positive revenue growth to the Group.

Health and Beauty Products

During the past years, the Group’s ability to introduce innovative
and quality products has earned a leading status in the Hong
Kong market. Moving onwards, the Group is planning to distribute
the health and beauty products to the major cities in the PRC, with
satisfactory progress. The management believes by leveraging on
“Sau San Tong” brand name and the customer confidence built up
over the prior years, these health and beauty products will be well
received in the market bringing forth an additional revenue stream
for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE[E

Distribution Business in the PRC

Apart from provision of slimming and beauty services, another
major line of business is product distribution. We distribute
mainly P&G personal care, cosmetic and skin care products,
such as SK-IlI, Olay, etc. and also Gillette Men series and
Philips Lighting products. With the Group’s great effort, the
sales of SK-Il and Olay are very encouraging during the Year
Under Review. Start from last year, we also distribute certain
world famous brands of prestige fragrances, such as, Dunhill,
BOSS, Gucci, ESCADA, etc. We believe that with the increasing
variety of products, it will bring sizeable revenue for the Group
in near future. Looking forward, as the PRC market continues
to boom showing immense potential for high-end products,
the management anticipates the revenues generated from the
distribution business will experience further growth and will in
turn provide the Group with stable source of income.

Outlook

We expect the impacts of the Eurocrisis and Credit squeeze will
stick around for a while. Such impact to us is immaterial because
our Group is financially strong and we have no investments
in derivatives, bonds or structured financial products. During
the year, tightly banking credit policy together with intense
competition induce the closing down of some second tier beauty
and slimming services providers. Facing with this extreme
business environment, we are now actively developing new ideas
and exploring new business opportunities, and we are highly
confident to ride through it.

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial
Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2010 were approximately
HK$39,553,000 compared to approximately HK$29,988,000 as
at 31 March 2009. The Group’s gearing ratio of 19% (2009: 45%)
was based on the total of bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases of approximately HK$14,417,000 and the net assets
of the Group of approximately HK$75,778,000. As at 31 March
2010, the Group’s liability was approximately HK$75,574,000,
compared to approximately HK$92,047,000 as at 31 March 2009.
It includes account payables and other payables approximately
HK$29,250,000 (2009: approximately HK$23,711,000), mainly
for the daily operations of our subsidiary — Dong Fang, deferred
income approximately HK$12,941,000 (2009: approximately
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE[E

HK$15,040,000) and bank borrowings approximately
HK$13,626,000 (2009: approximately HK$22,546,000), bank
borrowings is also for Dong Fang trading activities. Such liability
is intended to be financed by internal resources of the Group. The
liquidity ratio of the Group represented by a ratio of current assets
over current liabilities was 1.76:1 (2009: 1.383:1), reflecting the
adequacy of financial resources.

On 23 September 2009, the Company completed an open offer
with an assured allotment of five offer shares at HK$0.01 per
share for every one existing share held on the record date. The
Company issued 4,799,400,000 offer shares of HK$0.01 each
under the open offer raising net proceeds of approximately HK$46
million (net of expenses of approximately HK$2 million). The net
proceeds will be used for repayment of debts and as general
working capital of the Group and for financing its operations and
activities for expanding its existing distributions business in order
to improve the financial position of the Group and to enrich and
diversify its business, bringing better returns to the Shareholders.

On 13 January 2010, the Group successfully further raised funds
from the Subscription in the amount of approximately HK$3.8
million before expenses. Funds raised from the Subscription will
be used as general working capital.

Increase in Authorised Share Capital and
Share Consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting on 31 August 2009, the Company’s authorised
share capital was increased from HK$15,000,000 divided
into 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each by creation of additional 8,500,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each.

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting on 11 February 2010, every twenty then issued and
unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into
one new ordinary share of HK$0.20 each. Following the share
consolidation which became effective on 12 February 2010, the
Company’s authorised share capital is HK$100,000,000 divided
into 500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each, of which
297,562,500 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIE[E

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly so as to reduce the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage liquidity risk, the Group
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure the liquidity
structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and to
ensure that the Group can meet its funding requirements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and payments
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi,
the Groups considers that there was no significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$75,778,000 compared to approximately
HK$54,986,000 as at 31 March 2009. There are no charges on
the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2010.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2010, the Company has issued a corporate
guarantee amounting to RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,033,000) (2009: RMB15,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$17,033,000)) to a bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary as 51% owned by the Group.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had 477 employees (2009:
around 431 employees). During the year, the Group’s total
staff costs amounted to approximately HK$47,123,000 (2009:
approximately HK$44,844,000), including provision for long
services payment and annual leave amounted to approximately
HK$900,000 (2009: HK$NIl). Pursuant to the share option scheme
adopted by the Company, share options have been granted to
eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company under
the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
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The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are
in line with local market practices where the Group operates. In
addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including provident fund and medical benefits. The
Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company. There
is an aggregate of 4,979,154 outstanding options to subscribe for
4,979,154 shares of the Company pursuant to the share option
scheme as at 31 March 2010.

Significant Investments and Acquisitions

There were no significant acquisitions and disposals of
investments by the Group during the Year Under Review.

Future Plan

Going forward, in addition to the continual improvement of the
operation performance of the existing beauty, slimming and spa
centres. Besides, the Group will invest more resources on beauty
product distribution business in order to enrich and diversify our
business, bringing profits to our shareholders.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley, aged 35, is the Chairman and
Founder of the Group. She established the Group ten years ago
and successfully developed it to a group with over 400 staff. Dr.
Cheung is responsible for the overall stewardship of the Group
which includes directions and formulating strategies. Leading the
Group to a new height, she achieved various accomplishments
complimenting her management style and innovative promotional
strategies. Dr. Cheung received the Honour Award of the
“Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2004” of the Hong Kong
district, organised by the City Junior Chamber in May 2004. In
November of the same year, Dr. Cheung was awarded as one
of the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs in China” by
the “Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”. She is also
one of the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the youngest
awarded entrepreneurs. In 2006, Dr. Cheung was awarded as
one of the “World Outstanding Chinese”. In 2009, she is awarded
as one of the “Top Ten Most Influential Entrepreneur for China
Brand Building” by The Board of Ten Influential China Brands.
Furthermore, she was invited to be one of the deputy chairmen of
the “China Foreign Trade Council”.

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie, aged 37, is an Executive
Director. He is responsible for the business development and
administration of the Group. Mr. Cheung holds a master degree
in business administration from Americus University of the
United States. Prior to joining the Group in June 2002, he was
the director of Vicorp Credit Services Limited, a company which
provides credit information, commencing from September 1999.
Mr. Cheung is an executive director of Chevalier Pacific Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Exchange.
Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin, aged 60, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
responsible for giving advices to the board of Directors and
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Hong is a practicing solicitor
and a notary public in Hong Kong. He has been practicing as a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong for over 34 years and is
the senior partner of Messrs Lau, Chan & Ko, Solicitors. He holds
a bachelor degree in science from University of New South Wales.
Mr. Hong is an independent non-executive director of Modern
Beauty Salon Holdings Limited and Fulbond Holdings Limited,
companies listed on the Main Board of the Exchange, as well as
the commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol.

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 51, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is the Vice
Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers of Hong
Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of the Election
Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of the Legislative
Council Election. Mr. Li is the founder and chairman of Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Exchange.

Ms. HUI Yat Lam, aged 36, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in March 2008. Ms. Hui is an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Hui has over 15 years of experience
in professional auditing, accounting and financial management.
Ms. Hui was previously the qualified accountant and company
secretary of Long Success International (Holdings) Limited, a
company listed on GEM of the Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. TSE Ching Leung, aged 37, is the Financial Controller,
Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr.
Tse is responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial functions of the Group. He
is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tse joined the Group in February 2008 and has
accumulated over 15 years of accounting and auditing experience.
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Introduction

The Company puts strong emphasis on the superiority, steadiness
and rationality of corporate governance. Subject to the deviations
as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with all
the provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing
a formal and transparent procedures to protect and maximize the
interests of shareholders during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM listing rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, they all confirmed having complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Group.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises five
directors, including two executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The Board is mainly accountable to the
shareholders. It is also in charge of the management, business
strategy, annual and interim results, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions and other
major operational and financial aspects of the Group. Major
corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to the management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for board approval before publishing, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the members of
the Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive
director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to
carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.
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The Board fulfilled the minimum requirement of appointing at
least three independent non-executive directors throughout the
year. It also met the requirement of having one independent non-
executive director with appropriate professional qualification
or professional accounting or financial management expertise
throughout the year.

Each of the independent non-executive directors have entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term expiring on 31
July 2009, with the term being renewed for a further term of one
year commencing from 1 August 2009.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each independent non-executive directors and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an executive director, is the elder
brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, the chairman. Save
as disclosed above, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

During the year, the Board met four times to review the financial
and operating performance of the Group. The details of the
attendance rate of each director are as follows:

EXEEeNAFE2FONAARZIRL =4
BIURRATESFIRERT  TRAFEEF
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SEXSHA XM HEEEXELER AT -
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ReBEXMBEREN EFSEKEHLE
HRR(BEMS - 2% KR HEbBER
HERREER)

RAEE EESLBINRES  LRHE
EEY U ERCLEE  REE Y BEREE
mF

Attendance at

Board meeting Attendance rate

Name of directors EEHR EEgHERE HE=E
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Rk EMHE L 4/4 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie REELAE 4/4 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin BRI E 4/4 100%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TR EEE 3/4 75%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam F—EZ L 4/4 100%
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Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley assumes the role of both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. While
serving as the chairman of the Group, Dr. Cheung leads the Board
and is responsible for the proceedings and workings of the Board.
The role of chairman and chief executive officer of the Group
rests on the same individual which deviates from the Code of not
having a clear division of responsibilities.

The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of the
Group to have Dr. Cheung, who is the founder of the Group with
vast and solid experience in the beauty sector, to perform the
dual role so that the Board can have the benefit of a chairman
who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group and is
most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely
manner on pertinent issues. With Dr. Cheung being the chief
executive officer, the Group can also benefit from having strong
connection and network in the beauty market.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are: to independent review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
systems, to ensure good communications among Directors and
the Company’s auditors, to recommend the appointment of
external auditors on an annual basis and approval of the audit
fees, to assist the Board in oversight of the independence,
qualifications, performance and compensation of the independent
accountant, to review quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements as well as the financial statements prior to
their approval by the Board, to provide advice on audit report,
accounting policies and comments to all Directors.
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The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors including Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam. During
the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to assess the
effectiveness of internal control system, to review all draft annual,
quarterly and interim financial reports, and to know about external
auditors’ statutory audit plan. The attendance records of the audit
committee meetings are set out below:

BERZBEGINEBRR=-RBUIFNTESRRE
ENEE(BEREESTR)  FTERBELLERF
—ERL RAFE  BERZEELHETARX
G AHEAMEERIE ZBMIE - FRMFA
BFE FERTHBBEREZER - ALK
RN BN R ERHGTE c BREBEE
& MRS

Attendance at
Audit Committee

Name of Audit ERZEEE meeting Attendance rate
Committee members REHA EREEEHERY HE=E
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin ERERLE 4/4 100%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FEELSE A 3/4 75%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam PRt 4/4 100%

Auditors’ Remuneration

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the year,
auditors’ remuneration for audit services (inclusive of taxation
services) is HK$850,000. Besides that, the fee for professional
services rendered for open offer is $230,000. Save as disclosed
above, no services such as due diligence and other advisory
services were provided during the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Group was established in
accordance with the Code. The main role and function included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.
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Members of the Remuneration Committee include three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hong Po Kui,

Martin and Ms. Hui Yat Lam.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to consider
and approve (i) the remuneration of the Directors, (ii) salary
adjustment of the management of the Group; and (iii) range of
salary adjustment of employees of the Group. The attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out below:
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2 MR EEImT

Attendance at
Remuneration

Name of Remuneration FMEES Committee meeting Attendance rate
Committee members REHA FMEZEESHERH™ HE=R
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing e 11 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REEE 11 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam Rt 1/1 100%

Nomination of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Articles of
Association to appoint any person as a director either to fill a
casual vacancy on or, subject to authorization by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting, as an additional member of
the Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed to the Board for
consideration and the selection criteria are mainly based on the
assessment of their professional qualifications and experience.
The Board selects and recommends candidates for directorship
having regard to the balance of skills and experience appropriate
to the Group’s business.
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Responsibility of Preparation of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of preparing the
financial statements of the Company. As at 31 March 2010, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties or events
which may have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to
operate as an on-going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on an on-going
concern basis. The responsibility of the auditors with respect to
financial reporting are set out in the Report of the Auditors in this
annual report.

Internal Control Systems

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure an effective and adequate
internal control system exists. The Company convened
meeting periodically to discuss financial, operational and risk
management control. The Directors consider that the Company
has implemented a series of procedures for safeguarding the
Company’s assets against unauthorised use or misappropriation,
maintaining accounting records properly and ensuring the
reliability of financial information.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and transparent
communication with all shareholders. The Company has disclosed
all necessary information to the shareholders in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules and through various communication
channels, including annual and extraordinary general meetings,
annual and quarterly reports, press announcements and circulars
to update the shareholders on the Group’s business developments
and financial performance. Such information is also available on
the Company’s website: http://www.sausantong.com.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands and
its shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial
statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products and sale of other health and
beauty products. The slimming centres, which are operated under
the “Sau San Tong” brand name, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Financial Statements

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010, and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date, are
set out in the financial statements on pages 42 to 138.

Transfer of Reserves

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of HK$24,957,000
(2009: HK$30,651,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 47.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil).
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 13 to the financial statements on page
89.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28(c) to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders. As at 31 March 2010, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders.

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2010 is set out in note 12 to the financial statements on
pages 86 to 88.

Share Option Information
A summary of the share option scheme and details of the

movements in share options of the Company during the year are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements on pages 111 to 114.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
Ms. Hui Yat Lam

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui Yat Lam will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Ms. Hui
Yat Lam as at the date of this annual report and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 22 to 23.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
each has entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of three years commencing 4 November 2003 and will
continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and
until terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing served
by either party to the other provided that such notice period shall
not expire at any time during the first 12 calendar months of the
term of the appointment.

Each of these Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary
and a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount
of the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any
financial year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and minority
interest but before extraordinary and exceptional items of the
Group) in respect of the financial year.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have been appointed
for a term expiring on 31 July 2009 with the term being renewed
for a further term of one year commencing from 1 August 2009.
Save for a total fee of approximately HK$130,000 for all of
them for the year ended 31 March 2010, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

EEZRBEN

REMBE L RRFESLREDBIEARBTHER
BEKW A-TZE=F+ - FNBEFAH=
FUBRENERRER—F KRIERER
EA—HRABS—HEREDNEASEBRAL
LEARLE  EBEBNBEIBREREFH
B+ @A REAREER -

ERTEFEEARBDR—FELFHFERE
TEAL - R AR BN EMT RFERMN 25
TEFZEARESHE  TEEEARMBSE
EARNGR B 2 BB G (BRI B D B R
SEERFAREZIFEHERFHRIERR) 2
10% °

BYNITEERZAZAHER_ZTNF
+tA=+—HE®R MBEBFHEEET —
F oR-ZTTAFNA—BEF - BREE=
T—EF=-RA=-+—HLEFEINTHEEE
Z e A H£%130,0008 LI - B IEHITE
EEREZTHEMNEMIE

EECANER
EFPENAQTLLATHER TR ZM

RAFREREARBERFIDAFEZEMEX
BT ERAREREREAES °

Annual Report 2009/10 4 it 3
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & & &2 3% A B A+



DIRECTORS’ REPORT #E= &34

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2010, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)) which are required to be notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO,
including interests and/or short positions which they are deemed
or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which will
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

EERFERETHRAERRD ZES
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Number of shares

ROBE
Approximate
Percentage of
Interest in the
Company’s
issued
share capital
Corporate Personal HRAARAT]
Name of Directors Interests Interests Total 2RITRA
EEpnA AEERE B Az By EZZENESL
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 44,760,000 30,021,000 74,781,000 2513%
R EMEL (Note 1)
(Kizt 1)
Note 1: T

The 44,760,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited
(“Biochem”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability. The entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned by Dr.
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

#% 44,760,000 % % 17 B8 Biochem Investments Limited
([Biochem ) #§ % * Biochem A — BN KB E X5
ML 2 BR AT ° Biochem 2 22 BT AR KT
MmEL2EHE -
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme
The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from

share options granted to the Directors of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

RARBRBERD 2HR

RS

ARBRBERD 2 KB AR RRIEEBE

AERTARBERZBRE - EFHBWT

Aggregate
Long position

Approximate
percentage
interest in the
Company’s

in underlying issued share
Shares of the capital
Subscription Company YN
Price per share RALF BRTRE
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period SRRH HERG+ i £k )
Espg RFEH T REE HRZBY B
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$2.436 1,050,898 0.35%
REMEL “ZTMFEAATH 3 November 2013 2.436/87C
“ZTMFAATRE
—T-=%1+—-A=H
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$2.436 1,050,898 0.35%
G Aibi “ZTNFEARTH 3 November 2013 2.436 /87T
“TZMFAATRE
—2—=5+—A=H
Note 1: Mt 1 -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director in a physically
settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

As a result of the completions of open offer and share
consolidation of the Company on 23 September 2009 and 12
February 2010, the number of share options and the subscription
prices have been adjusted in accordance with the requirements of
Rule 23.03(13) of the GEM Listing Rules and the supplementary
guidance issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
5 September 2005.

HRESMMBGROIME - LA RSERESRNAENE
HRAFTETRZIR -

ARARBIZ A AAEERROEHI IR -E
ENFNANA-+=ZAR=-FE—ZFTF=-A+=H
TeRk - BRESE RRBEEDREAIFER LT
FRAIZE23.03(13) 6 BB E R H AR AR
RZEERFNARABEG 2 FHFESITEZ
REELFAE -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT #E= &34

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2010, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

B ENXPEEEN R —TF=A=1+—
B ARAFRES  TETRABREZB 2B
BALHERARBREBEEE(EERES
KREIEGRBIFE XV ED) 2 B - BB TR
RIRBEESFLMERPIEBGREFEZE
A - SHRIRAIZER ETHRAIF 5.46 £5.67
GRFTEARRARESETR 2 REFEANE
ARB R ZEAN - Rk - RAISEAME
BIORR - MAMEANLRE RBERZFR o

FERRRRO 2EBERKE

R-Z—BE=A=+—8  HARAEAE
EATBTRABHA - THRRREELR
HEEREXVBE2RESHBATRE - &
WRAEENEERAAR T HITRASY
WAL RERBREEESRAEEHNE
BB HMEFE HABRML NG ARTE
mF

R 215

Number of shareholding

EREE

Number

of share

options held

Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage P

FERR g% [;idn) Btk BREEE

Biochem Beneficial owner 44,760,000 15.04% —
EmBEEA

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Beneficial owner 30,021,000 10.09% 1,050,898
ok EHE L EnEEA

GEM Hero Investments Limited Beneficial owner 43,200,000 14.52% —

BEmBBA
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the
Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above,
has registered an interest or short position in the share capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) has any interest in a business which compete or might
compete with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float in accordance
with the GEM listing rules.

B ENXPREEN  R_T—TF=A=+—
B BRARREERAKEERITRAB (R
SmHN EXEFEREBZTHRABRRND 2
Foxka I —&d) s MEEFAALTRARBIR
A HEROREFTECHAERIKR
MZAIRIEE 7 M BB 151 56 336 {5 T IARC 8%

ESWEROIES 2ER

BREXTEEREZITHRABRRG 2 #a k%
BI-EAREEIN  FOES  HXB2RE
EARM T N\BRZ FZRFRER RS EER
RNAREBARR ZB S ErmEs - M
BEIETEZFEN AR - BEBRA
A SRR E QR RE RN B QBB ER
TEMLZHBEEE A RSERMEMGEABR
ZEXERER

HEMER
AARES  TERFARSAZHEALCE

& RAIZER ETRA) I A B ACER B XA
PR A BB S X A (R -

BE - HEFELEALQXF LHES

ARBRETAHBARBERFANBE &
Bl EARRRER ETHES

RARNBIHERE
BARRAMAS 2 X REERTBAFR

R HRERFITRBMA  AARDRAIE
REMRAUNZRER/TRAZARFRE -
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 86.42% (2009: 99.51%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 80.33% (2009: 97.11%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 20.49% (2009: 27.23%) of the
total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$183,000 (2009: HK$368,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Group has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the
annual report. The audit committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2010.

FEEFRHERD

FR AEEEERAABRERIZRBEEFE
WAIRBEEE 2 86.42% (ZBZT N4 1 99.51%) »
MEBEPHRAEERNZREESIBK(ZE
TRF:97.11%) c REBZRAARFP ZHE
EHFEAEERE 22049% (T T NG
27.23%) °

ARREESLEEABEALTRERNRR(GLE
EFARM - WEREZBRABBARARREHET
BRARZ6%)NAEBERAHEEPEEERE

R 4435 -
EBEBR

AREEPNFRE L 2 ZEE I8 50E 4 183,0007%8
TT(ZZEZT A : 368,000/87T) °

BrRBEER

ARAB BB ERAMANTEFTATMNEBESL
BERZGX  MASESEENERZSTE
FR B EAR G -

EREES

AEBEDERAIFER EMARAE5.28 £5.33 &
ZHEKLEZZEE® - WASMEE] 7 KB
#HE ZEGLABRMETZIEFBEERN
REREEERMEIAN - BEREZEEEEH
AEEEE-Z—ZF=A=+—HIL22F
e mE o
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Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditors

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was first appointed as auditors of
the Company in 2008 upon the resignation of CCIF CPA Limited.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 June 2010

FRESETESFXE2TATA

AARERERHETEFRHEMN —EGREA
HNAIER ETHRAIE 5482567 K2R P W
TRERKBRE ZITRATH - (EREFHEITE
(R H21THRTH - ERAMBESELERNE
B ARREEMEESHCBTHNAIE
IR ETTARAIEE 5.48 & 5.67 {KATILZ X 5 W SFIZ
S o

B BLEm

HARESSAMELAARARBE - BEX
ERMEBRAERATANR_ZZTN\FERE
RERKRR ZAZEHED -

BEREGHMEBMERQBERSEE B

BERURTREREEE - XAARIKRIERE

BRERBFAGLIRE-BRAR  BEFEX
SETEVERPA AR A B AR BAZEED -

REREFS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT ¥ #Z &R &

-5~

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED

il RAEG R DT A R

12th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

HWTHHEP168-200 M P OWMBRHRKEL M

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited

BEEERERAR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
42 to 188, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

HESEERERAA
(REEHSHEMA L BRI A])
PRRRZBILHMRE

AAZEE (AT MBI BT )) B BRI HARE 42
ZF1BERHFEZEREBRAFIATERENE
DA 2 EEMBRE R BRERE
RZE—ZEF=RA=+—BZHBAENMRAREE
BERUREBEZBLEFEZHGARER 7
EEANRER GKEEREHRIEAADN
BX URTEEFER 2B ERE MM AR

ESHMBHRRARREZER

BERREFAAERBEBBEMAGRMZ
BEMBREERNREB(RTERIDZEER
ERHEIEEMAFHEINZFIHRE - It
AERRR BETk#gFERRIEEMA
Fih 2 5 B IS IR ARRE 2 A ERESE - LAE R A
BRY T FEARRFRERMEBNEKH
mERA  EBARMEEGHER  RZEER
TEHAEZ&5HAE -

BB 2 BE

BAWEEERBRFNEZHZERHERER
EHER - RIBEERBERRBRE - BUtA
Sh - BRI E TR AEEMAE - JARD
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 14 June 2010

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #R&

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &

ZH=t+—HILFE

A

@R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net loss

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Share of profits/(losses) of jointly
controlled entities

Loss before taxation

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Minority interests

Loss for the year

Loss per share
Basic and diluted, HK cents

The notes on pages 50 to 138 form part of these financial

statements.

H b &5 185 58

$HE Moy A

—RRRITHF

REEBR

BEMAR

R HRZEGERAN,
(B8)

BB AT E 1B
Fris i >
FRER

BER
RARERFEA
DAL R AELS
FRER

BREE
BN - Bl

Note
Btat

6(a)

10

2010 2009
—E-EF —EThEF
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

470,725 437,916
(389,006) (359,450)
81,719 78,466
2,254 1,418
(83) (181)
(61,211) (63,081)
(50,957) (45,186)
(28,278) (28,564)
(1,248) (1,579)
2,858 (3,277)
(26,668) (33,420)
(2,154) (1,039)
(28,822) (34,459)
(24,957) (30,651)
(3,865) (3,808)
(28,822) (34,459)
(10.05) (15.19)

FHE02F 138 A ZWE I EHHREKx 2 — 6

N
1)

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #Z& 2 HWaE &
For the year ended 31 March 2010 # % TE=A=1+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7S7

2010 2009
—E-=F ZZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the year FREE (28,822) (34,459)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMEEIE :
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINAB AR Z BB IRE
financial statements of overseas FEECIENZ5  &HIEZ
subsidiaries, net of nil tax et = 2,446
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEBBEATE (28,822) (32,013)
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFFAA (24,957) (27,033)
Minority interests LERR A (3,865) (4,980)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAZHEBAE (28,822) (32,013)

g

50EF 138 A Z M It FEF K 2 — &8

o

The notes on pages 50 to 138 form part of these financial
statements.

D

Annual Report 2009/10 4E Ji $i & m
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & & &2 3% A B A+



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 288 EBEX

At 31 March 2010 TF=ZRA=+—H

T25)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7E7

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans, secured

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Amount due to a related party
Deferred income

Obligations under finance leases
Current taxation

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Obligations under finance leases
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

FRBEE

ERN G
7

RERZESEREZ S

RBEE

&

JEWE 5 3R
FANFIR - e REAM
FE W SR IE
%W%@Ai%ﬁ
ReMREEFEY

FEBaE

IRITE - B
JEfTE 5508
EMEMSRERETER
BN —REZRE

e — R BB A TR
FEIEHA
e S AE

& HRIE

REBEEFH
EEABRRBAE
FREBEE

RhEFH S AEE
ELERIAEE

BEFHE

Note
izt

13
14
16

17
18

18
19
20

21
22
22
23
19

24
25(a)

24
25(b)

2010 2009
—2-%F —TENF
HK$°000 HK$’000

TET TETT

21,177 26,529

250 250

2,702 2,685

24,129 29,364

7,308 5,641

43,187 34,325
20,697 26,213
16,478 21,502
39,553 29,988
127,223 117,669
13,626 22,546
19,191 14,508
10,059 9,203
14,306 24,836

887 887
12,941 15,040

791 1,141

393 323
72,194 88,484
55,029 29,185
79,158 58,549

— 791
3,380 2,772
3,380 3,563
75,778 54,986
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #4L&%&
At 31 March 2010 e 5| SR =]
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T£51))

2010 2009
—ZE-EF ZETNF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
izt FET FHET

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR#HE 28
Share capital [N 59,513 9,599
Reserves B (3,748) 21,509

Total equity attributable to equity RARIERIFE AEG

shareholders of the Company B 55,765 31,108
Minority interests DERR RS 20,013 23,878
TOTAL EQUITY Wi 75,778 54,986

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 14 EEEgRN T -SF A THBIERERET

June 2010. %o
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
[ REE
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 50 to 138 form part of these financial F50EF 138 B Mz EH B @z 2 — 5
statements. 7
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BALANCE SHEET EE&f&%&
2o +—A

ABITES)

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
RITBRT 2R E

hRBEE
FEMFT B A BIRIE
BNFR e R EMEW
IR
RekReFED

nRBaE

FER B R EIFRIA

Hi N RIA KB E A
BN —REEAE

RBEEFRE
BEEFE
EXRRREE
[EEN

i

RSB

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 14

June 2010.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley

R E

Director

EZE

The notes on pages 50 to 138 form part of these financial

statements.

2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
st FET FET
15 4 4
4 4
15 58,614 82,798
18 547 908
20 14,144 1,203
73,305 84,909
15 3,540 3,852
22 1,076 923
23 14,489 25,174
19,105 29,949
54,200 54,960
54,204 54,964

28
59,513 9,599
(5,309) 45,365
54,204 54,964

EEeN - ZE-TFE A TOEERKET

2% o
Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
RE=E
Director
EZE

FE0EE 138 A ZM I FEIH KoK 2 — &

N

7 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #&
For the year ended 31 March 201 E-TE=H=A4HIEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (bA7&7

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RORRREEARS
The PRC
Share-based  statutory
Share Share Merger  Exchange  payment surplus - Accumulated Minority Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
HEER

B2 BER  ofGR  EXER BOMRER  BBGR  RUER B JHEREE  BiNE
Nofe  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOO0
Hit A fér TAr A TEr TET TEr TEr TET TEn

S

At1 April 2008 R-EENERA-A 9,699 90,926 (3,637) 675 3,316 784 (83521) 58,141 28,858 86,999
Changes in equity for 2000:  —EEAF2ERET:
Total comprehensiveloss  FRGEBELE

for the year - - - 3618 - - (30651) (27.083) (4.980) (32013)

At 31 March 2009 W-BEAEZA=T-A 9,599 90,926 (3,637) 4293 3315 784 (14172) 31108 23818 54,986
At1 April 2009 HN-SENEMA-A 9,599 90,926 (3,687) 4293 331 784 (14172) 31108 23878 54,986
Changes in equity for 2010:  —F-BF2EREE:
Issues of shares IRk 28c)i) 49914 1920 - - - - - 5834 - 51,834
Share Issue expenses POEETT 280 - (2220 - - - - - (2,220) - (2,220]
Cancelation of share options &% R - - - - (1) - 2 - - -
Total comprehiensiveloss ~ ERGTBELE

for te yer - - - - - S M%) B (8RR
At 31 March 2010 A-E-5E=A=1-A 59,513 90,626 (3,637) 4293 3173 784 (98,987 55,765 20,013 15,778
The notes on pages 50 to 138 form part of these financial EE0EF 138 B Mk It EF iz 2 — 2B
statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED CA
For the year ended 31 March 2010
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L

2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
et FET FEr
Operating activities BT
Loss before taxation BRELRIES 18 (26,668) (33,420)
Adjustments for: KA T % -
— Interest income — FLBMA 5 (194) (141)
— Depreciation — e 6(c) 10,836 10,578
— Impairment losses on trade — BB HHRIAE - HMpE
receivables, other receivables, FIE - BURES R B E A
deposits paid and amounts due THEIBRIEEE
from related parties 6(c) 9,386 4,134
— Write-off of other receivables — bR IE S 6(c) 1,013 2,002
— Reversal of impairment loss on trade — FEUYE 5 IR E E5 87Tl
receivables 5 (233) (185)
— Net loss on disposal of property, — LEmE #EX
plant and equipment R EIBFE 5 1,665 124
— Finance costs — BVERA 6(c) 1,248 1,579
— Share of (profits)/losses of jointly — FE (LR E e
controlled entities (BF) /8 (2,858) 3,277
— Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net — — B3, (Uz5) /&8 54 (17) 3,322
Operating loss before changes in BEELEHAZ
working capital ReEEE (5,822) (8,730)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 78 (g R (1,667) 1,048
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEUE 5 5k18 (34hn0) /74> (8,629) 950
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FE{TFIE 184 R EH A
other receivables FEMGRIEIE N (800) (3,329)
Decrease in amounts due from related  JEUERE A +3XIER A
parties 941 1,698
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JEfTZESHHRIEEZ N, OF4) 4,683 (496)
Increase/(decrease)in other payables — E.fh e3R8 & fEst &
and accrued charges #mn, R 856 (12,496)
Decrease in deferred income REU AR D (2,099) (3,070)
Increase in amount due to a related JERT— 2 BRI A T FRIBIG AN
party — 887
Cash used in operations ARREERE RS (12,537) (23,534)
Tax paid BRI
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ENFREMEAEH (1,476) (1,210)
Interest received EUF 8 194 141
Net cash used in operating activities FAREE ZH2HEFE (13,819) (24,603)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #FR&EREREE
For the year ended 31 March 2010 # % TE=ZRA=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7S7

2010 2009
—E-=F —ZETNEF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
biaE FET FEr
Investing activities REES
Repayment from/(advancement to) HREEHIEEER (AR

jointly controlled entities TH BRI 2 FKIA) 2,746 (5,884)
Payment for the purchase of property, BEE Y%  #22 N R iE

plant and equipment ANE (7,209) (14,828)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWEE - R N

plant and equipment Z TS R0R 60 594
Net cash used in investing activities FARREZE2REFE (4,403) (20,118)
Financing activities REEE
Issues of shares, net of expenses TR fIBRFA S 28(a) 49,614 —
Repayment of bank loans BERIETER (112,860) (112,525)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIZIRITE 2 FISRUE 103,952 112,940
(Repayment to)/advancement from m—BEE (EXR)

a director B2 FRIE (10,530) 24,836
Inception of finance leases R R EEE - 2,300
Capital element of finance lease BENRERERS

rentals paid BARERS (1,141) (670)
Interest element of finance lease EffptERERS >

rentals paid FEZH (67) (30)
Other borrowing costs paid B EA SRR A (1,181) (1,549)
Dividends paid to minority interests BT RER 2 RE = (2,108)
Net cash generated from financing XERMEEE R FE

activities 27,787 23,194
Increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERBEEEY

cash equivalents #hn, (GRd) 9,565 (21,527)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April RINA—AZRERBESZEY 29,988 50,493
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXgH oo

changes - 1,022
Cash and cash equivalents at R=A=+—-HZzHRER

31 March REeZEEY 20 39,553 29,988

S

I

The notes on pages 50 to 138 form part of these financial S50EE 138 B 2T NIt S Bz 2 — B
N

statements. 77 e

N
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands and its shares have
been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and 12th Floor, Prestige Tower,
23-25 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
respectively.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).

DFEH

EHERRERAATARR DR ZE
T-FRRA-t+—ERBEHASEE AR
FB2RERNRVE(—NAR—FEM = - 45
ERETRASHETMKR I RERE
BRAR > MEKROB ZZEZ=F+—AH
THRBREBHEZZFERAR (5
TR BIZER([BIZR]) i -

RARNFESHSAAE  AMiiER
N E E e EME o BIAL Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands &
BERENERDBRBBCE23-25 KK E 0
T

EREEE
(a) WhHIEA

WEMBBRRDREABEREL
MBREENTEEHBREE
Al B EE LGRS
(IEBGHEAE )BEMZHAEE
BERERMBREER FEE
FPEA(TEA ST AR REE) -
BAE ARG RAREE ARG
ZHEBERERE - WL FEMBRERI
A B PT Rl X R E Z L H AR A
(TRIZEMR ERRR ) 2 @B E %
X o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
periods reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 35).

A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31 March 2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

SEZHAI - ARETIITR)

2 FESTBE®E

(a)

(b)

EHIRAGE)

ERGMAGDRMETRAS
BEARRRZANG IR ERER
KA HIER R R REER] &
BB EREER - MESRHTE AR
BRERZFER(HRAMBRE
[ bR 2 AR ER ) B 1 B SR AN SR [
BREEZEMNSHTHRREPZE
o

KEB ZFTER K2 ERM T
35) °

AEERAZETBZGTBRZIME
£

MBRR2HEREE

BE-T-BF=A=T-ALF
ErBARBRROEADARE
GEPEIC S S DEESS
B SRR R 2 -

WMEVBBRRIRRBZFAERER
JEE SE AN o

WENETAMBHREE ZHH
WRFEEEEELAE - Bt R
R& - M&FHE - Bt RBRRE
TERRZERAREE  ABERK
ANRFAXZE2B28E - RFHR
HERRIREBELRRETH
BRTHERGEZZHEAMEAE
RERMEL > EERBRYEX
REMAREFRHBHZEERA
BZREEELHE 2 EE - BR
RERAREEZ BT TR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 34.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

2 TESETHBE®E

(b)

(c)

MBBRZEREE(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income or loss
for the year between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment
to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such
profits until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(h)(ii)).

SEZHAI - ARETIITR)

2 FESTBE®E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 3 & 75

BHAETTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group
or Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control
over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entity’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see note 2(h)). The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly
controlled entities and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax items of the jointly controlled
entities’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled
entity. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the
jointly controlled entity is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity.

2 TESETHBE®E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

SAEFEHIN

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(h)(ii)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business

combination is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or a jointly
controlled entity during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Iltems of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(h)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i)  Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives at the
following annual rates:

Machinery 10.0% — 20.0%
Furniture and fixtures 10.0% — 33.3%

Office and computer 10.0% — 20.0%

equipment
Leasehold 20.0% or over the
improvements remaining terms
of leases (whichever
is shorter)
Motor vehicles 20.0% — 30.0%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(ii) Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the estimated net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

(g) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets over
the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the
life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(h)(ii).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investment in equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries, see note 2(h)(ii)) and
other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in jointly controlled entities
recognised using the equity method (see
note 2(d)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment as a whole with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2(h)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note
2(h)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ SA7ERE5N @ A

TEHR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

For trade and other current receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— investments in subsidiaries; and

— goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

1)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2(h)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(p)(i), trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand and deposits with banks that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories at the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in share-based
payment reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black Scholes
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payment reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

Income tax

(i)

(if)

(i)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Kzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Kzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS + ABITTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FEETHBER®
(0) Income tax (Continued) (o) FTEH(E)
(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, (v) & HATRIE AL BR RO IE T TE 45 64
and movements therein, are presented separately WREZE  HEEHHAET
from each other and are not offset. Current tax RAeEREAHE - SHNHIEER
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and EMELRIBEEERSELRR
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, RIS AE BB & AEN IS
if the Company or the Group has the legally ﬁl@;ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁ'
enforceable right to set off current tax assets I B /& AT & 64 2 150
against current tax liabilities and the following T RIS E‘Jﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂlﬁﬁ
additional conditions are met: BERIELERIEEE
— in the case of current tax assets and - EHNTREEERAE:
liabilities, the Company or the Group AARRAEEGEZ
intends either to settle on a net basis, or FEARELE T E
to realise the asset and settle the liability REEZRESES
simultaneously; or &3k

— in the case of deferred tax assets and - & Lﬁﬁﬁé)}%ﬁ:
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied ZEEERBRAKYAR
by the same taxation authority on either: B — AR AT H

h-BRBMZERE

—  the same taxable entity; or — [A—ERHEE:
B9

— different taxable entities, which, in - TRERBEE -
each future period in which significant ZEBRTEER
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or B REEIRER IR
assets are expected to be settled or BEBENELER
recovered, intend to realise the current Iﬁéf%%l@21
tax assets and settle the current tax RIREAfE R SRR A
liabilities on a net basis or realise and HEEFREMBIERE
settle simultaneously. ENEEEHHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within other payables and
accrued charges. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note 2(p)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in other payables and accrued
charges in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB RS © HABITTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

2 EFEETTHER®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(a) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic
and skin care products and the sale of other
health and beauty products is recognised when
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services is recognised in profit or loss
in proportion to the stage of completion of the
service contract. Revenue is also recognised in
profit or loss in respect of the deferred income
upon expiry of the service contract.

(iii) Management and consultancy fee income

Management and consultancy fee income is
recognised when services are rendered.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

2 TESTHBE®E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB ERRIN » HIIAHS

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transactions dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate the applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

TE5IR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (b S& RSN @ A

TEHR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Kzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS + ABITTIIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

3 Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:
° HKFRS 8, Operating segments
° HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial

statements

o HKAS 23 (revised 2007), Borrowing costs

o Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

2 FESHHEE#®
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

° Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — improving disclosures about financial
instruments

° Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate
financial statements — cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate

° Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment —
vesting conditions and cancellations

Except for HKAS 1 (revised 2007) as described below,
the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs have no
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising from
transactions with equity shareholders in their capacity as
such have been presented separately from all other income
and expenses in a revised consolidated statement of
changes in equity. All other items of income and expense
are presented in the consolidated income statement, if they
are recognised as part of profit or loss for the period, or
otherwise in a new primary statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Corresponding
amounts have been restated to conform to the new
presentation. This change in presentation has no effect on
reported profit or loss, total income and expense or net
assets for any period presented.

(% SEEBI - BB

3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Kzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS + ABITTIIR)

4  Turnover 4 EEH

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale REBEFEEBRADHEE LML ES
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty Em - RHEDT RIS KIEE MR
and slimming services and sale of other health and beauty EREREM °

products.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied EEBIERNEFPIRHBEC ERZBERERE
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax in - RE - MEMSKEMEER - UK
or other sales taxes; and service income from provision R EREED ML R Z RIS AR &=
of beauty and slimming services, net of discounts. The e N - REXEBER S EZHET
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised WESREIT

in turnover during the year is as follows:

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin DIEHE LA R EEER
care products 403,222 364,985
Provision of beauty and slimming ROt ER K 4 st
services® 66,349 70,290
Sale of other health and beauty products 44 E{REE ] EAE R 1,154 2,641
470,725 437,916
# Included in the revenue from provision of beauty and # AARBREXTRBBRSE 2 ka
slimming services was an amount of HK$38,178,000 (2009: 2% %’QSS,WSLOOO;% T(ZZEZTRF :
HK$36,350,000) arising from realisation of deferred income upon 36,350,000 7T) Jy H IR 7% & 49 & i 12 &
expiry of the service contracts. BIEFEUAFTE & ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ S8 RSN + HABITIIR)

5 Other revenue and net loss 5 HMBEREIEZFEE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Other revenue Hipur s
Management and consultancy fee income &I M iRAEUA 1,276 1,053
Interest income MBI A 194 141
Others Hith 784 224
2,254 1,418
Other net loss Hitgs 835
Subsidy income from the PRC R B A e B A
government 908 1,094

Compensation received from landlord on  FRIRRRIEMEZKETHE
early termination of an operating lease BEFWEZ@#E

of property 2,494 —
Reversal of impairment loss on trade JEWE 5508 2 BB k518 El
receivables (note 18(b)) (Bt:%18(b) 233 185
Net foreign exchange loss fE 18 FRE (1,804) (1,573)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME WRNEREZ
and equipment gi= Pt (1,665) (124)
Others Hth (249) 237
(83) (181)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB RS © HABITTIIR)

6 Loss before taxation

Loss before taxation is arrived after charging:

6 BRBAERE

BRERIEEE MG TS E

2010 2009
—E-EF —EThEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
(a) Finance costs: (a) BREMRKE :
Interest on bank loans IRITERFI B 1,181 1,549
Finance charges on obligations BYE T E A T
under finance leases == 67 30
1,248 1,579
(b) Staff costs: (b) BIRKA :
Salaries, allowances and other e R REMET
benefits 42,211 40,472
Contributions to defined contribution REHEFRKEE 2 H3R
retirement plans 4,912 4,372
47,123 44,844
(c) Other items: (c) HfbIEE :
Cost of inventories sold and services BEFTERBIRERS
provided * PR A 389,006 359,450
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A B & 823 747
Depreciation on property, plant and ME - BB REREITE
equipment 10,836 10,578
Provision for impairment losses on BEE B S
— trade receivables — BB 518 — 552
— other receivables — E U EIE 4,309 3,682
— deposits paid — BEfEE 994 —
— amounts due from related — U REE A LT FIE
parties 4,083 —
Write-off of other receivables Ji0 88 EL b B U SR TE 1,013 2,002
Operating lease rentals: minimum KEHERS  SIEER
lease payments e
— property and display locations - MERERERS
rentals 20,556 18,987
— other equipment — HAibi& 78 175
* Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes * EEFERBIRHRBKARESHE LT
HK$2,218,000 (2009: HK$2,243,000) relating to staff costs and BN K I B 22,218,0008 TT(Z T T A,

depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(b) for each of

these types of expenses.

RAEAE -

F:2,243,000/87) S ENRSERA
S 9 RlEE A _E XX FE6(b) 5 R 1 B 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

7 Income tax in the consolidated income 7 HEWRBERAZFEH
statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) #HmEWBRAZHBIERE:
represents:
2010 2009
—EB-ZF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FET

Current tax - PRC Enterprise Income EHHi1E — FETEFEH

Tax
Provision for the year (note 25(a)) FNEE (H7t25(0) 1,480 1,329
Under-provision in respect of prior BEFERETL

years 66 53

1,546 1,382

Deferred tax IEIERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary B K EE

differences (note 25(b)(i)) ErrETE (H7725(0)0) 608 (343)
Income tax expense FIS R 2,154 1,039

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made REBFBHMS - ARARAE R
for 2010 (2009: HK$Nil) as the Company and SRR 2 R 8215 B4 2 5 18 30 AR B
ARIEAN - WA EH - T —TFE
HEBNGHEFE(—ZTAF: T
BIL) o BEAINE LR 2 BHIETY
BREBRGRZERBITZEER
IR MU -

its subsidiaries sustained tax losses or have no
assessable profits for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes.
Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is charged
at the appropriate rate of taxation ruling in relevant tax
jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB RS © HABITTIIR)

mEWERAZAER )

7 Income tax in the consolidated income 7
statement (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) FIEHBEXHERBEASRTEZS
accounting loss at the applicable tax rates: ST EZHER
2010 2009
—ZT-EF ZZTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THETT
Loss before taxation BREiRIEE (26,668) (33,420)
Less: Share of profits/(losses) of JB R ERIEHERE AR,
jointly controlled entities (EB#8) 2,858 (3,277)
(29,526) (30,143)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BREAISE 2 BRI
calculated at the rates applicable to ZEARERRR 2 &
profits in the countries concerned ZREEHE (3,492) (3,660)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NAJHIR RS 2 B iS5 & 1,573 796
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR A 2B 2 (408) (306)
Tax effect on temporary differences RERYREE o MIFE
not recognised (1,276) 513
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRBARIBEIEZ
recognised W2 5,428 3,537
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRI ARBRNIEEE Y
previously not recognised issE (147) -
Under-provision in respect of prior BEFERETR
years 66 53
Others Em 410 106
Actual tax expense BEEHIBEA 2,154 1,039
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

8 Directors’ remuneration 8 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the disclosure RIBFEBRRERE 16112 HERTEM
requirement of section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies EREBE2EESMWT -

Ordinance is as follows:

Salaries, allowances Retirement scheme
Directors’ fees and benefits in kind contributions Total
EzHe Fe RMRENAG BIRGHEIRE af
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
S2-2F _ITHF ZB-BF _TTNEF [ ZB-BF _TTNE ZB-BE _TTNE
HK$000 HK$'000 =~ HKS$’000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000 = HKS$000  HK$'000
A7 TET 27 TET AT FET A7 TET

Executive directors HESE
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, FEMET

Shirley - - 2,573 2,573 12 12 2,585 2,585
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, REELE

Frankie - - 600 600 12 12 612 612
Independent non- BUFHTES

executive directors
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TEEEE 40 10 - - - - 40 10
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin -~ BE %4 30 30 - - - - 30 30
Ms.Hui Yat Lam F-ExL 60 60 - - - - 60 60

130 100 3,173 3,173 24 24 3,327 3,297
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB RS © HABITTIIR)

9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 EEFAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two hE&EaFHATH  WE(ZZTEZTNF
(2009: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed MEB)RES HMNSHBEERKZ
in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the 8 ZI=FB(ZFZTNF: =&)ALz
other three (2009: three) individuals are as follows: Be@zEm T
2010 2009
—E-=F ZZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments HFehEMMe 2,142 2,472
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET SR 34 36
2,176 2,608
The emoluments of the three (2009: three) individuals with —H(ZETNF : ZR)EEF AT 2]
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: BN TIIEHE
2010 2009
—B-EF —ZTNEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
HK$ Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z87T%£1,000,000/87C 3 3

10 Loss attributable to equity shareholders of 10 AATEFZIFHAREEE
the Company

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders ARAREGEFBEARGRABEBR
of the Company includes a loss of approximately ERARAUBHRREEZBEY
HK$50,374,000 (2009: HK$170,000) which has been dealt 50,374,000 7T(= T F AL ¥ : 170,000
with in the financial statements of the Company. BIT) °
11 Loss per share 11 BREE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the BREABEDERNRAFEREA AR
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of G E18 424,957,000 B TT(Z T NF -
approximately HK$24,957,000 (2009: HK$30,651,000) and 30,651,00078 70) R FRE #1T 2 & A
the weighted average number of approximately 248,363,000 hnE ¥ 15 B4 248,363,000 L (—FE T 11
(2009: 201,747,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year. £ : 201,747,000 ) EHE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

1

12

Loss per share (Continued)

The weighted average number of shares for the purposes of
calculating the basic loss per share has been retrospectively
adjusted for both years for the open offer on 23 September
2009 (see note 28(c)(iii)) and the twenty-to-one share
consolidation which took place on 12 February 2010 (see
note 28(c)(ii)).

No diluted loss per share has been presented for the years
ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 since the effect of the
outstanding share options as at 31 March 2010 and 2009 is
anti-dilutive.

Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s financial information mainly from business
lines prospective. Accordingly, the Group’s operating
segments are:

(i)  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products
(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services
(iii)  Sale of other health and beauty products

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of reportable
segment results. This measurement basis excludes other
revenue, other net income/(loss), finance costs, share of
profits/(losses) of jointly controlled entities and unallocated
expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude interests in jointly controlled
entities and other assets that are managed on a central
basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities that are
managed on a central basis.

11

12

BREE )
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HAZHEBRN (BR) RO ER
%o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 &#RESN » HLABITIIR)

12 Segment reporting (Continued) 12 2 EER®
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) DEXE EERESE
Distribution sale of Provision of beauty Sale of other health and
cosmetic and skin products and slimming services beauty products Total
AEBENMRERER RUXARAREY HERMRRERZRER At
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

“R8F  ITNF | SR-RF TN | SRRE . TR | ZR-BE | CIRAR
HKS'000 HKS000 | HKS'000 HKSOO0 | HKS(000 | HKS000 | HKS1000 | HKS'000
7 TET 77 TET AT TET 7 T

Reportable segment revenue  S1EIEF 272

from external customers Pilies 403,222 364,985 66,349 70,290 1,154 2,641 470,725 437916
Reportable segment results ~ AI2HAEES 6,419 1919 (24,739) (23,344) (1,436) (287) (19,756) (21,712)
Unallocated corporate FARAFRY

eXpenses (9,890) (9,955)
Unallocated corporate FPRAAE

other revenue ks 1,368 3108
Loss from operations BeER (28,278) (28,564)
Finance costs BERK (1,248) (1579)
Share of profits/(losses) of ~ [EEAREHEERT

jointly controlled entities /(BB 2,858 (3.217)
Loss before taxation BRaEE (26,668) (33,420)
Taxation HE (2,154) (1,039)
Loss after taxation BigER (28,822) (34,459)

Provision for impairment HEEELE

losses on
— trade receivables —EYES7E - 552 - - - - - 562
— deposits paid —Bizs - - - - 636 - 636 -
— amounts due from related  — EREBAL
parties i) = - 4,083 - - - 4,083 -
Reversal of impairment on trade ENB 5B E
receivables Be (233) - - - - - (233) -
Write-off of other receivables M EfEAEUR - - 221 2,002 - - 221 2,002
Depreciation E 1,893 1,271 8,926 9,294 17 13 10,836 10,578
Segment assets NREE
— Property, plant and — 0% KRR
equipment Bt 4,867 3,443 15,764 19,654 67 30 20,698 28,121
— Interests in jointly — AR EE
controlled entities ZER - - 2,702 2,585 - - 2,702 2,585
— Other assets —EfEE 74,880 73,983 26,971 21,926 3,441 4185 105,292 106,094
Unallocated corporate assets  AARATEE 22,660 15,027
Total assets BEEE 151,352 147,033
Segment liabities NESE (34,172) (6483 | (23,787) (7114) (590) (G5 | (68,549) (64,148)
Unallocated corporate liabiliies AAEAFIEE (17,025) (27,899)
Tota liabiffes af8E (75,574) (92,047)
Additions to segment non-  HEIEREEERE
current assets 3,655 1,819 3,496 12,956 53 17 7,204 14,792
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

12 Segment reporting (Continued) 12 2EER#E)
(b) Geographical information (b) tbEER
The Group’s revenue from external customers REBINGE P 2 Was KB BHIE
and information about its non-current assets by MEBEEZERORMEE 5 )W
geographical location are as follows: o
The PRC Hong Kong Total
HE i &t
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

3-8 CTTAF | SR-%F  TTNF | SR-%F ITNS
HKS000  HK$'000 | HK$'000  HKS'000 | HKS000  HK$'000
FET TAT FER TAT FEx TAT

Revenue from external ~ 4MFEFY

customers Wi 432,772 391,918 37,953 45,998 470,725 437,916
Non-current assets EnEBEE 18,127 17,643 6,002 11,721 24,129 29,364
(¢) Major customers (c) EEEF
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total BHE_Z—TFER_TTNF=H
revenue for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009. =+ —BHLFE  TEREF(HE

BEE10% s A £ o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS © HABITTIIR)

13 Property, plant and equipment 13 1% - HEBERRE
(a) The Group (@) ZA£E

Furniture  Office and
and computer

fixtures  equipment Leasehold Motor
Machinery HRR WAZER  improvements vehicles Total
B BELE EliRE HAENERE RE &t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000
AT AT TAT TAT TAT AT

Cost: BA:

At 1 April 2008 W-ZZ/\ENA-H 13,665 3,571 6,676 29,554 4,935 51,401
Exchange adjustments [ 5 35% 66 34 73 218 116 507
Additions HE 3,945 346 311 8,485 1741 14,828
Disposals e (244) (90) (219) (1,464) (1,468) (3,485)
At 31 March 2009 RZEZNF=A=1-H 17,432 3,861 6,841 29,793 5,324 63,251
At 1 April 2009 W-EZNENA-A 17,432 3,861 6,841 29,793 5,324 63,251
Exchange adjustments [} 5% - - - - 2 2
Additions AE 154 753 738 3788 1776 7,209
Disposals fE (1,456) - (603) (7.438) (525) (10,022)
At 31 March 2010 R-E-EF=A=1-H 16,130 4614 6,976 26,143 6,577 60,440

Annual Report 2009/10 4E Ji $i & m
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & & &2 3% A B A+



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

13 M% - BBERRE@

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(a) The Group (Continued) (@) EKEEE)
Furniture  Office and
and computer
fixtures  equipment Leasehold Motor
Machinery BRR WAER  improvements vehicles Total
BE EERE Elk%E  HENERE RE i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FET FET FET
Accumulated ZiHE:
depreciation:
At 1 April 2008 R=ZT\FEA—-H 7,846 2,11 3,662 12,94 2,044 28,664
Exchange adjustments [} ;8% 31 11 28 128 49 247
Charge for the year FREGE 2,183 455 958 6,069 913 10,678
Written back on LERHD
disposals (20) (90) (197) (1,464) (996) (2,767)
At 31 March 2009 R=EENF=R=1—H 10,040 2,547 4,451 17,674 2,010 36,722
At 1 April 2009 RZZTNFEOA-A 10,040 2,547 4,451 17,674 2,010 36,722
Exchange adjustments ~ [E 5% 1 - - - 1 2
Charge for the year FREE 2,159 476 773 6,286 1,142 10,836
Written back on HERER
disposals (971) - (327) (6,538) (461) (8,297)
At 31 March 2010 W-E-Z£4=f=1-H 11,229 3,023 4,897 17,422 2,692 39,263
Carrying value: REE:
At 31 March 2010 N-E-ZF=F=1—H 4,901 1,591 2,079 8,721 3,885 ARYES
At 31 March 2009 REEENF=A=1—H 7,392 1,314 2,390 12,119 3,314 26,529

R-ZZE—ZTFZA=Z+—H A&£H
BEREAHERBCREZFREAER
2,079,000 8 7L (ZZEZ N F : 2,691,000
BIT) ©

As at 31 March 2010, the carrying value of the
Group’s machinery held under finance leases was
HK$2,079,000 (2009: HK$2,691,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS © HABITTIIR)

14 Goodwill 14 m&
The Group
AEH
2010 2009
—E-FF ZZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET
Cost: A :
At 1 April and 31 March RUA—HBE=A=+—H 271 271
Accumulated impairment: HEHRE:
At 1 April and 31 March ROA—BER=A=1+—H 21 21
Carrying amount: ARMEE:
At 31 March R=A=+—H 250 250
Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s RE TR 2(e) THl 2 AN EB SR
accounting policies as set out in note 2(e). N
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit EEDENEE R REHED KSR
(“CGU”) in relation to the provision of beauty and slimming % ARRHPEHEE M REEERNSD
services in Hong Kong and the PRC; and the sale of RErEE s ReEFBEM([ReELS
cosmetic and skin care products in the PRC. firl) o
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based WeEESN 2B & BIRFEREBE
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash BHEETE - WEAEHEHKARRERE
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by BEZEs NFHMBREELE RSN
management covering a five-year period. =TER -

Annual Report 2009/10 4E Ji $i & m
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & & &2 3% A B A+



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

14 Goodwill (Continuea) 14 BHE#E)

EREBENENEMBZEIERRS

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are:

2010 and 2009

—B-BER

—EBNE

— Gross margin — EF= 5% — 15%
— Discount rate — BRIR % 129

Management determined the budgeted gross margin EREEREBERATRELESEMSERE T
based on past performance and its expectation for market HmMETEEENE - FIEAZARER
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and TRl - R ERRE -

reflect specific risks.

ReELBEUZAROSESNERE
B BRZEAMES) R A W=
MERRERE -

The recoverable amount of the CGU is greater than its
carrying amount. Any adverse change in assumptions could
reduce the recoverable amount below carrying amount.

15 Investments in and amounts due from/to 15 RIBATIZREREW FE
subsidiaries L NGE €

The Company

AT
2010 2009
—B-2F —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTI - AR 3,664 3,664
Less: impairment losses JB - BB E TR (3,660) (3,660)
4 4
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEW B AR 128,614 101,546
Less: impairment losses JB ORIEEE (70,000) (18,748)
58,614 82,798
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHI B A RIZRIE 3,540 3,852
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB ERRIN » HIIAHS

15

Investments in and amounts due from/to

subsidiaries (Continued)

TEHIR)

The amounts due from or to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries

as at 31 March 2010. The class of shares held is ordinary

unless otherwise stated.

Name of company

TR

Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. (note (i))
(W)

Sau San Tong China Holdings Ltd.
(note (i) (A1)

Smartime International Investment
Ltd. (note (i)
ERERREERDA M2 )

Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd.

(note (i) (A1)

Wise Fortune Holdings Corp.
(note () ()

Sau San Tong China Development

Ltd. (note (i) (#:21)

Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd.

(note (i) (Hiz)

Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. (note (i)
()

Brilliant Concept Co. Ltd. (note (i))
(hin)

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd.

(note (i) (H#)

Place of
incorporation

e E

British Virgin Islands
ABRUES

British Virgin Islands
ZERAEE

British Virgin Islands
LBRUES
British Virgin Islands
LBRUES

British Virgin Islands
ZERAES

British Virgin Islands
ABRUES

British Virgin Islands
RERIHE

British Virgin Islands
LBRUHES

British Virgin Islands
ABRUES

British Virgin Islands
ZERAEE

Place of
operation

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(30

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(30

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(30

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BETRARRRHE

1,000 shares of US$1 each
1,000 REREE 1 £ KD

1 share of US$1 each
1REE1ETZRA

1 share of US$1 each
1REE1ZTZRA

100 shares of US$1 each
100 AERAE ZT R

10 shares of US$1 each
10REREE1ET2 R0

10 shares of US$1 each
10REREE 1 ET R

100 shares of US$1 each
100AERAE ZT 2k

100 shares of US$1 each
100 AERAE ZT R

1 share of US$1 each

1REE1ZT 2R

100 shares of US$1 each
100 REREE ZT KD

15

FHTE’A?Z?QE&EU&/E
3B B 2 R FRIR ()

JE LT S JE A~ P 8 A )
/,\}RRI{E e

AIRAREER - 28

NTEERER_Z—ZFEF=A=1+—H
ZHBARFE - KA BT - IR
IR AT B

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERENA
Group's Held Held
effective by the bya

interest Company subsidiary

FEEVE  mALR AMELAR  Principal activities
BEE BF B IEXE
100% 100% — Investment holding
RERKR
100% 100% —  Investment holding

B

100% 100% — Investment holding
REAR

100% 100% — Investment holding
AR

100% 100% — Investment holding
RERER

100% 100% — Investment holding
RERKR

100% 100% - Inactive
ﬁﬂ“%

100% 100% - Investment holding
AR

100% - 100%  Investment holding
RERKR

100% - 100%  Provision of management
consultancy service

RUBERARY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F

15

Investments in and amounts due from/to

subsidiaries (Continued)

Name of company

NA%R

Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Ltd.
BAEERAT

Sau San Tong China Holdings Ltd.
(formerly known as Sau San Tong
Health Food Ltd.)

EaEhanRER LA

(BB S ZRERMARAA)

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology
Healthy Trim Institute Ltd.
BIEREERRRIE
R LERLE

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology
Healthy Trim Institute (TST) Ltd.
BAEREERRRIRRET D
(RY8)BRAA

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology
Healthy Trim Institute (Causeway
Bay) Ltd.

BaeReRTRRIRRETL

(EE)BRAA

Sau San Tong Management Ltd.

BIEERERAT

SST Advertising Agency Lid.
Bt BEREARAR

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Ltd.
(note (i) (Hiz)

Place of
incorporation

MR L
Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
30

Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(3

British Virgin Islands
ERLRS

Place of
operation

£
Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
(3

B AN - BB )

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BEARARRAE

10,000 shares of HK$1 each

10,000 EREE 1 BT R

100 shares of HK$1 each
100 REREE 1 BT 2R

18,750 shares of HK$1 each

18,750 REREE1 BT R

10,000 shares of HK$1 each

10,000 S REE 1 BTk

100 shares of HKS$1 each
100 REREE 1 BT 2R

100 shares of HK$1 each
100 REREE 1 BTk

10,000 shares of HK$1 each

10,000 5REE 1 BT RA

1,000 shares of US$1 each

1000 RERAE 1 %2R

15 RITBRAR2RERER &

5Bt B A T FRIE (47)

Proportion of ownership interest

REERLLD
Group’s Held Held
effective by the bya

interest  Company subsidiary
FEEZE  HALE AMEAT
RER 2] B

100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

50% - 50%

Principal activities

IERE

Sale of health and beauty
products
HERRRZRER

Inactive
fmex

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

RUXARGERE

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

RUXARGERE

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

REXARGERS

Provision of management

consultancy service
REEERARS

Provision of advertising
agency service
REESHRRS

Investment holding
and provision
of management
consultancy service
REERR
RUCEREARE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS © HABITTIIR)

15 Investments in and amounts due from/to 15 B"H‘JE@?ZEE&EU&/E
subsidiaries (Continued) B A TIFIEE)

Proportion of ownership interest
REERLLD
Group’s Held Held
effective by the bya

Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest  Company subsidiary
Name of company incorporation operation and paid up capital REECE  BALE HWELR
LS MRS S BRTRAERAFE RiER 2] 5
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute ~~ British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 5% - 51%
(Hangzhou Ltd. (notefi) ERRAHE Bk 100 kERAE Fr2 kG
(i)
LE-TBERBRAA frotes () and  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 50% - 100%
(i) (B i) g i hE 1S5150,000
&% 150,000% 7
LERGALHEERAT The PRC The PRC Registered capital 51% - 51%
(notes (i and (i) a2 i) i) R EL hE 1S$5,000,000
% 5,000,000% 7
—ERRARE(RINERLA fofes  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 51% - 100%
(i) and (i) (B2 (i) & (i) hE hE HK$3,500,000
it &#43,500,000 %7
—EREREE(MMN)BRAE frotes  The PRC The PRC Registered capital 51% - 100%
() ana (i) (B3 () & (i) hE hE HK$3,500,000
i EA3,500,000% 7
Highlight International Trading Ltd. Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100%
SHEREHERAA B 35 100RBREE 1 BT KA
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100%
Healthy Trim Institute (Shatin) Ltd. ~~ &7# B 100 REREE BTk
EaEBEXRRRERRERL
(VB)ERAT
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 50% - 50%
Development Ltd. (note (j) ARRAHE Bk 10kEhAEI ZT RN
()
Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - 100%
Ltd. (note (i) (Fry) iBRIES B 100RERAE 1 ETIRG
Machiko Enterprises Inc. (note (i)) British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - 100%
() ABRAES (3 100RERAE 1 TR

Principal activities

IERE

Investment holding
REER

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

REXARARRHE

Distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin care

products
HEHELHIERER

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

RUXARGERE

Provision of beauty and
slimming services

REXARARRHE

Inactive
gﬂu§

Inactive
fmax

Inactive
ggﬂu%

Investment holding
REERK

Investment holding

RERR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

15 Investments in and amounts due from/to

subsidiaries (Continued)

15 RITBRAR2RERER &
BB B FRIR ()

Proportion of ownership interest

RRRRENA
Group’s Held Held
effective by the bya
Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest  Company subsidiary

Name of company incorporation operation and paid up capital REE2E  @ALE HMELR  Principal activities

ARER Rall AR XY BEARARRAE Bis k8 ¥E IEER

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute ~~ British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 51% - 51%  Investment holding

(Shenzhen) Ltd. (note (i) (4/)  EBRTHEE Bk 100 RERAEE XL RN RERR

Winner Sight Ltd Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100% - 100% \nactive

ERERAA BB B 2REREE1ELIRA fmex

FREER(LR)ERAE fofes i) The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% -~ 100% Provision of beauty and

and () (A2 ) Z i) b i HK$1,000,000 slimming services
& 1,000,000 7 RUXARSERS

Note: Hat

(i) The financial statements of these entities are not required to be 0] BEZESEEAMKN I BERABERE X
audited under the laws of the British Virgin Islands, the country of HEXN  ZEEBIUBRRBALSE
incorporation. #% o

(i)  The financial statements of FE—FEEABRAF for the (ii) LB -—ERERERARABE_TTNF
financial years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 prepared F=ZFZENFF+_A=+—RHLUKRFE
under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the Zﬁﬁ%*ﬁi DIRERBER 2 AREETR
PRC have been audited by /&R AR @ tEIEHMAERAF]. BIRE - WA B R ARE SRR

BRDDEY -

(i) The financial statements of /@%#IA(LISEBRAE for the (i)  FERHBACHEHESRAFTAE_TTA
financial years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 prepared FRZEZNF+TZA=+—HIEHERF
under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles apphcable in the EzBBHREDRETEERZ ARG
PRC have been audited by ST{Z&:tEIEBHIARA EE‘J?@@ WY EERMEHMERA

RIEIZ ©

(iv)  The financial statements of —F&& &R CFII) BRAT for vy —EBRIRBECFRIDBERARDNEE-ZF
the financial years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 prepared ENER_ZEZENFF+_A=+—BLH
under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the WFEE2HBREDBRBEFEEAZAR
PRC have been audited by F#II 2 =S TaIS=HFT. HRAGE  THAVNEZSTMES

Ptz »
—ERHEXBMNAERAT =

(vy  The financial statements of —F{54I8 6 (FiM) AR AT for v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the financial years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 prepared
under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the
PRC have been audited by #T T ABEHMEHKHERAA

The financial statements of FAFEXEZR (4t3) AR AT for the
financial year/period ended 31 December 2009 and 2008
prepared under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
applicable in the PRC have been audited by XZEIF(Z (tR) &3f
HES gl NG|

These entities established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises.

These entities established in the PRC are sino-foreign joint-
venture enterprises.

(vi)

(vi)

(i)

TNERZZEZENFET A= % Elﬂ:ﬁﬁ
Eﬁ(ﬁzﬁzﬁﬂ%#&%)ﬂﬁﬁqﬂli@ﬁﬁz/‘ﬁ’
SHRAGRE  WAMIRABEETAMER
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@a%’fif’

AREXTULR) AR D AE
FR_ZENFE+_A=+—
B/ HE M BRRTIRETE
REHRANGEE - WAHRELE
B R NGIE: S

IERPBERT 2 BRBIMNEEEDLE -

I

_|_
i 0 10 WY
Edal
g
5> =

&
A

i

E®

7

—
L
~

WERPEKLcBBRTIGERE -

Annual Report 2009/10 4 #ir 3%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 &2 3% A B A+



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS © HABITTIIR)

16 Interests in jointly controlled entities 16 RHAFEHER 2R
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FEr
Share of net liabilities EhaEFE (436) (3,299)
Amounts due from jointly controlled FEU S R HIE S
entities I 3,138 5,884
2,702 2,585

WA RZEG ERFKAREERR 28Rk
EETENRY EFRA - WEFKALD
BN —FREER ARG EERE

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment. In the opinion of directors, these amounts are

not expected to be repaid within one year and are therefore KHEDBEAIERE -
classified as non-current in the consolidated balance sheet.
Details of the jointly controlled entities as at 31 March 2010 RZE—ZEF=-A=1+—H 2 HRZHE

GACTUNNE

1)
Fﬁ’@

are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest
BRERRLD
Group’s Held Held
effective by the by a

Place of Place of Particulars of issued interest  Company subsidiary
Name of joint venture incorporation operation and paid up capital A5EVE  @DAk AMEAT  Principal activities
RELRER Bz EH BRTRAERAE RER 5B BE IZER
Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each 50% - 50%  Investment holding
SEERAT 3 &% 10,0005 8 REEET KD RERK
BIESHER (LR) BRAF The PRC The PRC Registered capital 50% - 100% Provision of beauty and
i wE US$150,000 slimming services
HHHE7150,000% T RUZAREERS

The financial statements of EFEEHER (JbR) ARA
a] for the financial year/period ended 31 December 2009
and 2008 prepared under Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles applicable in the PRC have been audited by X
IFE (JER) S5t SEBAERA

EHEFRET(UARBRATNBE_F
FNER-_FZFN\F+-_A=1+—HLY
BEE /2 KT RE T RE A
ZAREFRAGRE - WARRFEEREUL
RGN EBAIARAAER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

16 Interests in jointly controlled entities 16 REREGHER 2EH )
(Continued)
Summary financial information on jointly controlled entities HEEHEE — AEBECER#ER 2
— Group’s effective interest: HERTE -
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets FEMBEE 3,295 3,909
Current assets MENVE EE 5,472 1,925
Current liabilities PEA)=Vi (8,578) (9,133)
Non-current liabilities FERBERE (625) —
Net liabilities BEFR (436) (3,299)
Income @N 9,449 1,693
Expenses FisZ (5,966) (4,970)
Income tax expense Frisfim s (625) —
Profit/(loss) for the year FAREM, (BE) 2,858 (3,277)
17 Inventories 17 78
Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprise: REEEBBERAZTFERRE !
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-=F ZZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Merchandise BIRK TR 7,308 5,641
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS © HABITTIIR)

17 Inventories (Continued) 17 E&#)

p=

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRARAI 2 FESEITNAT :
expense is as follows:

The Group
REHE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EBETHhEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEFEZEREE 378,255 345,256
Write down of inventories FEHMR 53 36
378,308 345,292
18 Trade and other receivables 18 EWESRIERHMEWKRKIE
The Group The Company

REHE ¥ /N

2010 2009 2010 2009

—B-2F —ETNF —E-BF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

Trade receivables FEWE 55018 43,647 35,018 - —
Less: allowance for i RARBE
doubtful debts (K17#18(b))
(note 18(b)) (460) (693) - _
43,187 34,325 = _
Other receivables EAh R Ia 7,111 13,856 - —
Deposits and prepayments &4 N8+ 718 13,586 12,357 547 908
20,697 26,213 547 908
63,884 60,538 547 908
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Included in the Group’s deposits and prepayments
were rental, utilities and other deposits amounting to
approximately HK$5,146,000 (2009: HK$4,459,000), which
are expected to be recovered after more than one year. All
of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were advances
to slimming business partners amounting to approximately
HK$4,662,000 (2009: HK$7,236,000), net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$7,670,000 (2009:
HK$3,582,000) and advances to staff of approximately
HK$238,000 (2009: HK$729,000).

(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade

receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet

date:
Current BIHA
Less than 1 month past due B HDEA
1 to 2 months past due wHI1E2(EA
More than 2 months but less than  #EI2ZE41E A
4 months past due
More than 4 months but less than  #EI4Z=121E A
12 months past due
More than 12 months past due wHEA2ME AN £
Amounts past due mES R

18

FEUR & 5 FR1E K EL A AR IR IR (42)

FFAAREZ RS KEMFEARES A
e R EMIE £ 5,146,000 0(Z &
T NF 1 4,459,000 70 ) - FEHIR B
— 18I o FTR E A EWE 5 I8 R H

b & WK FR IR TR HA R — 5 O Uk [ s R RR A B
¥ o

FFAREER 2 HtEWKRIB RS
BB 2 FIEH4,662,0008 (=
T TN F 7,236,000 0 ) (H1 Bk R B
BB 497,670,000 (=T ZT N F -
3,682,000/ 7)) + kME LH#N 2 5KIE
#7238,0007 JL(= & Z AL 4 : 729,000
EIT) ©

(@) FREDH
A AEUCE 5 BUR N H A & W sk0R

REWKE ZFEFNRREREE)
HRNGEHE A 2Rk DT

The Group
rEE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
39,736 31,976
3,320 1,505
6 67
— 75
125 379
- 323
3,451 2,349
43,187 34,325
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (Continued)

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from
the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 29(a).

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 2(h)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debt
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, are as follows:

At 1 April REA—R
Impairment loss recognised BRI E R R
(note 6(c)) (H1#16(c)

Reversal of impairment loss (note 5)

At 31 March R=A=+—H~

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$460,000 (2009: HK$693,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to invoices in dispute and
management assessed that the chance of recovery is
remote. Consequently, specific allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$460,000 (2009: HK$693,000) was
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

SEZHAI - ARETIITR)

R(EREREE (#iF5)

18 BN E 5 7 A R H AR IE ()

(a)

(b)

Rl 04T (42)

EWE S ERBERA YR 30E
QREH AEBMEEBRZE—
FEHIEEPIFE29(a) ©

FE s B 57 FRIE R (E

FEUS & 5 IR 2 BB 5 18 T {5 A 33
BRREE - BRIEAKEEMREZ
B A BEMEERIE - ERIBAT
R IREZRN EE 55 R M
(RHEE2(h)()) °

FR - REEE(RREER R ILRE

B 22EBHWT
The Group
AEH
2010 2009
—g-8F —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR T
693 326
- 552
(233) (185)
460 693

W-_E-—ZTF=ZA=+—R0 &%
[ 2 FE W E 5 3R I8 £ 460,000 4 7T
(ZZZT A4 693,000/ 7T ) # &
RETAERE o ZIE R E R K
REDEEFZLEEFH mMER
B R Uk Bz AT Be AR o A It
R BR 55 Bl B 5 460,0008 0(Z &
ZAF 693,000 7T ) B HER o A
EETERZSEHFTE T KA

[}
on °
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18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

Neither past due nor impaired N 4480 B X% N R
Less than 1 month past due wHDER
1 to 2 months past due wHI1ZE2(EA
More than 2 months but less than  #HI2E4(E A
4 months past due
More than 4 months but less than  #1Hi4Z=121E A
12 months past due
More than 12 months past due wHEA121E A LA £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

18

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#Rk R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

FEUR & 5 FR1E K EL A AR IR IR (42)

(c)

I R E 2 B B 5 KR

The Group
AEE

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
39,736 31,976
3,320 1,505
6 67
— 75
125 379
— 323
3,451 2,349
43,187 34,325

I 48 380 B K 3 S OR 18 2 FE WA TS
HEAWEIPERCHRIEFPA

B BB X R 8 < FE R IR T
ZERAEERBRIFERLEZ
BURFER REBELER &
TREAF 28K E - ERER
ERARZSERELRMERE -
7N 65 [ 3F 4 A 5% A RIS A A TR
o o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS © HABITTIIR)

19 Amounts due from/to related parties 19 U FENEEALTFIE
The Group
KEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNhEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Amounts due from minority FEU DB AR SR FRIE
shareholders 14,154 15,148
Amounts due from related companies  FEUBRIE AT IE
(note) (Htat) 2,324 6,354
16,478 21,502
Amount due to a minority shareholder  fEfRT—& D ERR R FIE 887 887
Note: A director and a key management personnel of certain Wi —REER—HETHBRARIZEEERE
subsidiaries has beneficial interest in each of the respective AEREEMAERTEEE =L

related company.

The amounts due from or to related parties are unsecured, JEW KRN BAEA THIEAEEWR - £8
interest free and repayable on demand. RIBIREREE -
20 Cash and cash equivalents 20 RERBAEEEY
The Group The Company
AEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009

—=—FF —TThEF  —F-TF —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET F#ET FET
Bank deposits RITIFX - 5,678 = -
Cash at bank and in hand ~ $R{TRFEIRE 39,553 24,310 14,144 1,203

39,553 29,988 14,144 1,203
At 31 March 2009, bank deposits of approximately RZZEZNF=ZA=+—8 ' BIIEZH
HK$5,678,000 were pledged as security for bank facilities 5,678,000 8 TRt AN B 2 SR1TELE
granted to the Group (see note 21). EHRERER(EMEE21) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

21 Bank loans, secured

At 31 March 2010, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

Within one year —FR

At 31 March 2010, the Group had revolving bank loan
facilities of HK$30,659,000 (2009: HK$23,278,000) upon
which interest was charged at rate of 5.10% per annum
(2009: 5.35% to 5.44% per annum) and were secured by:

(i) guarantees from the Company, a director, a minority
shareholder and a staff member of the Group (2009:
guarantees from the Company, a minority shareholder
and a staff member of the Group);

(i) pledged bank deposits of HK$Nil (2009:
HK$5,678,000); and

(iiiy properties owned by certain staff members of the
Group (2009: properties owned by certain staff
members of the Group).

The amount utilised by the Group as at 31 March 2010 under
the above banking facilities was HK$13,626,000 (2009:
HK$22,546,000).

21

MITENR - FEM

R-E—TGE=A=+—0  $IEHA
%LX—F,HH BEE -

The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—EB-FF —EETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
13,626 22,546

RZE—ZEF=A=+—H ~x&EE%
BRRRITE R E 30,659,0008 7T(=
T T N, 123,278,000/ 7T ) LA F F
EE510% (ZZETNF  FHE535%FE
5.44%)5T B + WA 5 SIEMERIE

() ARA]ARE-RBRIBERE—
HETRFZEFR(CEZAF K
RE - ARE-ZLBBERE—%
BTRHEZER)

iy EEBROTERZEBT(ZZEZTN
F :5,678,000/87T) 5 &

iy XEBETEIHRBZWECCE
ENF AEEBETEIBRBEZY
%)

R-BE-—FTE=A=+—80  AE=ERE
FHIRITREFTEI A 2 584 13,626,000
BIL(ZZTENLE : 22,546,000787T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Kzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS + ABITTIIR)

22 Trade and other payables 22 BENESZREREMENKIE
The Group The Company
EM AT
2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-=F _—TTNF | ZT-2F _—TTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET
Trade creditors BB SRR 19,191 14,508 — —
Other payables and HMERRIER
accrued charges IEFTER 10,059 9,203 997 923
29,250 23,711 997 923
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be Fr B FE & 5 3/ I8 K H Ath FE 5 SRIB TR B i
settled within one year or are repayable on demand. R—FNBEXRBIRERKERE - 5T A
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with NESFIEREMENKIBRENE SR
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: o HREEBZERROITIAT
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FET
Due within 1 month or on demand FAE B P9 sk 7 B Sk 2| HR 19,191 14,416
Due after 1 month but within P ZE3ME AR EE
3 months - 84
Due after 3 months but within R3E12{E AN E|HR
12 months - 8
19,191 14,508
23 Amount due to a director 23 BEN—BESNE
The amount due to a director, Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, ERESREMEL 2 FELEER &
is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. BRBRERERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

24 Obligations under finance leases 24 RMEHEEAE
At 31 March 2010, the Group had obligations under finance R-ZTE—ZTF=ZA=+—H KAEB &
leases repayable as follows: BEHEREREEBENT
The Group
REME
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEThF

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

RIKFER RIKFER RIKFESR RIKER
HEZBE He@m HazHE HeE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FHET FET
Within 1 year 1F R 791 805 1,141 1,208
After 1 year but within 1226 R
2 years - - 791 805
791 805 1,932 2,013
Less: total future interest R AR BRI sZ
expenses k) (14) (81)
Present value of lease HEREZRE
obligations 791 1,932
At 31 March 2010, a corporate guarantee was given by a RZE-ZF=A=+—H —HEH#H
related company, of which Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie ERAR(RREXERERE)MRHMEMR
is a shareholder, in respect of the finance lease facilities of E /& 42,300,000 L (=TT NF ¢
approximately HK$2,300,000 (2009: HK$2,300,000) granted 2,300,000/ )M —HHE AR RER
to a subsidiary. AELR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Kzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS + ABITTIIR)

25 Income tax in the balance sheet 25 EEEBBERAZFEH
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (@) REGEEBEBERAZEHBIE
represents: 1
The Group
TEH
2010 2009
—E-=F —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI TS
— Provision for the year — FRREE
(note 7(a)) (Kiz#7(a) 1,480 1,329
— Provisional tax paid — BB (1,087) (1,006)
393 323
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

25 Income tax in the balance sheet (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax — the Group
(i)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax liabilities

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and
the movements during the year are as follows:

25 BEEBRAZHAES @)

(b)

Depreciation

EEBE — A5E

EHEREENRAE

Wird BEAERERZIEE
BEEEHD RRFENZ S
T

in excess of

the related Other

depreciation temporary
allowances differences Total

FEBHER Hit
wERE URER af
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT TET FET

Deferred tax arising AT EEREEZE

from: EBLIE

At 1 April 2008 RZZEZNF
MA—H (40) 3,081 3,041
Charged to profit or loss ~ BHiEzEH%

(note 7(a)) (B15t7(a) 27 (370) (343)
Exchange adjustments Rk — 74 74
At 31 March 2009 RZTTNF

=A=+—H (13) 2,785 2,772
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNF

mA—H (13) 2,785 2,772
Charged to profit or loss ~ BHiEzEH%

(note 7(a)) (B15#7(a) 274 334 608
At 31 March 2010 WZ_E—FF

=A=+—H 261 3,119 3,380

Annual Report 2009/10 4 it 3%
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 &2 3% A B A 5]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

25 Income tax in the balance sheet (Continued)

SEZHAIN - ARETIITR)

25 BEEBRAZHAES @)

(b) Deferred tax — the Group (Continued) (b) EERE — RNEM(E)
(i)  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: () RERAELHIEAR :

At 31 March 2010, the Group has not recognised RZE—FTF=H=+—

deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary B AEBWERTRERE

differences of approximately HK$11,029,000 #711,029,000 8 T(ZZTZ N

(2009: HK$5,455,000). F 1 5,455,00078 70 ) IR IE
MIBEE -

(i) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (i) RERELERIBEEE !

At 31 March 2010, the Group has not recognised RZE—ZFTF=HA=+—

deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax B BAREEBRG A E#

losses of approximately HK$144,092,000 (2009: &R EE TN KA A R KE

HK$115,609,000) and deductible temporary RBBFNABEEE MK

differences of approximately HK$8,975,000 SEYERZRATEAER

(2009: HK$7,852,000) as it is not probable that 144,092,000 T(ZZEZF 1

future taxable profits, against which the assets F 115,609,000 7t ) & A]

can be utilised, will be available in relevant T E By 2 58 8,975,000 7T

tax jurisdiction and entity. Of the total tax (ZZEZ 1 F :7,852,000/8

losses, approximately HK$25,416,000 (2009: TO)ERBELERIBEE - 18

HK$18,545,000) will expire within 5 years and &5 18 48 8 # + 25,416,000 %

the remaining tax losses of approximately T(ZZEZ N F : 18,545,000

HK$118,676,000 (2009: HK$97,064,000) have no BT BReFANER - ek

expiry date under the current tax legislation. T ¥ 18 &5 18118,676,000 7%
T(ZZEZENAF ¢ 97,064,000
BT RBRTROAY & E W
H o

(c) Deferred tax — the Company (c) IEEBIE — AQF

No deferred tax assets or liabilities have been made in

the financial statements as the Company does not have

any significant temporary differences. The Company

has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of

cumulative tax losses of approximately HK$1,429,000
(2009: HK$2,320,000) as it is not probable that future

HRARARYEBERNERNERE
B MABBRM BRI PIELELT
BMEEEXRE - HRNERBRDA
BT AR BEH R R E R B A

PRERE -

L ENNEIR I )

T8 &5 181,429,000/ T(ZEE 1

F 2,320,000 7T ) FE IR AL 7L 18
EE -RBEEBEBRERTH AT
JE R e

taxable profits will be available against which the
assets can be utilised. The tax losses do not expire
under current tax legislation.

Annual Report 2009/10 4 it 3
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & & &2 3% A B A+



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

26 Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
(the “Ordinance”). The scheme is administered by an
independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the eligible employees make monthly mandatory
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory contributions
by each party are subject to a maximum of HK$1,000 per
month. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant service period.

At 31 March 2010, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and
the employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident fund. At 31 March 2010, the Group’s contributions
to the provident funds and the accrued interest thereon
exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group
and the PRC employees are required to make contributions
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

26 SEMFRMAETE

AEBERBEEERIERTESABGI A
RIBEBRBIRD ([ZGH]) RDEE &
EBRzREERRHEATESE([RE
T8 - FAEMBUKAATE -

BIFRESFE  AEEMETHB AR KR
AERIEBAERAENERATESFENEHE
THAEZREREBMALZ5%MEHEIFT
PR EHzRBIMERRERES A
1,000 7T © MFrEI1EE 2 HF R B B Ak
TS EAR A TR AR S S BN B E5 R o

ZE=ZA=+—RH XEAET

PREZIGRDIIR T 2 3 RIS F 5
I & ERNEER IR ERESRARE
T AREEAEKENAZGIEE 2
BRTHAELNR  MEEAB SR
YAE BRHESRE - R -_T—TF=
A=+—R  AEERHEBESEL 2 HK
K H REH B BERRNT A %IEPIEEZ
BRhBEERE -

AEERTEZMBAR T RETR2RE
BE2EATHRIERIKE - ZFTEH
PRI ABTHEEE - AEERHEE

AT AR - AR BT R &
wAEARETENB AR Z2RABR
Bi&ENER ZRKENEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B BB RS © HABITTIIR)

27 BEXNAZRHERS

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 4 November 20083. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any
supplies, consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company and/
or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board as its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option plans of the Company at any time shall not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to the
Company issuing a circular and the approval from the
Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

ARAR -_FZE=F+—ANARMH A
AR B ([RE RT3 1) - BB RRERT
EEERARAAAERSAEERTHK
B ERREEARRE R, S E A S
DA R E RSB TE BB SR S AR
BREFSZABERSEEREARAR
SEEERAMBARZ 2B RRES
THRABHSRBE (BENT - JFRTT
EENBEBYINTES) UREFSHE
MRBEARRRAZENBAREL
BRI (MG ER - B - AR
BRZAL-

BREDERREIBELIRTAERSHA
%o BNBREGSTRAAENARE—
BARTEBE - BEREZITER/RE

SERERTE  EBRENEHBBAF
BAGITE - B BB EIHLE R HIERT
BT FRISREBARE -

RIBEE B R AR BEME MR
FHEIBER R W B RTTRZ A RETTRE
PREEITER AT R TT 2R REEE
TERBETRERITRGN Z30%

BRI RRIEBIRE 8 R AR AME
AEMBEREFINEAERSEAR
HERE(BRDTR - SRR
07 FE R HE ) TR R Al RE 1T 2 IRt 48
2 MR EER D BEIHER+ @A
AEBREARERTRNBE Z1%
RIS X BIZB B A 3 3 R 3 RIS AN A BB
RRBRERAE L& -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

27 BaXfizROEXRSZ#)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing

WRIE BB AR S BIR L 2 (AT e B AR
HRBEBD 21T B (BETTE R B
BNEHEFTEE2HRE  HXERTD
BER(BEOREHBM(LAREER)
R P AE SR EAMTE ¢ (i) X
R EER B AT A E S % B ERR A
B & PR FHUWE R (i) R E
BUAZREERE)

prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a

share.
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed (@) NFRNTFEZEDIGERNIEHE N
during the year are as follows: N

Number of Contractual
instruments life of options

BREZ
IEHA EHEH
Options granted to Directors: BTEEHERRE:
— on 10 September 2004 — RZZEZENFNA+H 2,101,796 9.2 years 4
Options granted to employees: BT EE 2B
— on 2 September 2004 — RZEENFNA-H 210,180 5.0 years F
— on 20 May 2005 — REERFHA-1+H 168,143 5.0 years F
— on 6 September 2005 — RZZEZTRFNAA 2,709,215 5.0 years £
3,087,538
Total share options TEAR 4 B 5,189,334

MAITEERESE RETEED
BIEBREGEIZ G R
EHEAA-T=BETZAME
& (B 28(C)i) MR —E—Z4F
ZRtZHETZZTREHAE—
% 2 B 7 & 0f (5 M 5E 28(c) i) ) 1E

At -

The numbers of outstanding options and their exercise
prices have been adjusted in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme for the open offer
on 23 September 2009 (see note 28 (c)(iii)) and the
twenty-to-one share consolidation which took place on
12 February 2010 (see note 28(c)(iii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Kzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS + ABITTIIR)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27 R zRBRXF#)
(Continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) FEREEHE MMEFHITEBZD
share options are as follows: K
2010 2009
S “ETNF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
hnFEFE B iR R piliE B REIRHE
TEE A 1TE(E #HA
HK$ HK$
B BT
Outstanding at the REEARITHE
beginning of the year 2.3778 5,189,334 2.3778 5,189,334
Expired during the year RERE® 2.4360 210,180 — —

Outstanding at the end  RELLHARITE
of the year 2.3753 4,979,154 2.3778 5,189,334

Exercisable at the end  RELAI{TE

of the year 2.3753 4,979,154 2.3778 5,189,334
The numbers of options and the weighted average MEFE 2 BRESE X NETF
exercise prices have been retrospectively adjusted HTEEERR_EZNFNAA
for both years for the open offer on 23 September ZtHZRETZARABE(RWE
2009 (see note 28(c)(iii)) and the twenty-to-one share 28c)(i) ERZE—ZFEF-_A+=
consolidation which took place on 12 February 2010 HETZ_tRatR—BRZEH
(see note 28(c)(ii)). A (R B 5F 28(c)(il) 1 L & 3 A

o
The options outstanding at 31 March 2010 had an RZE—EF=R=+—HMAKT
exercise price in the range of HK$2.318 to HK$2.540 FHEREZTEEN F2.3188 T
(2009: HK$2.318 to HK$2.540) and a weighted average Z25408 T(ZEZ N F - 2.318
remaining contractual life of 1.76 years (2009: 2.66 BILE2.540/870) © IEFHE &
years). EHFHBITI6F(ZEZNF
2.66%F) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black Scholes model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
Black Scholes model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

27 BaXfizROEXRSZ#)

(c)

10 September

Share price f& B

Exercise price I E

Expected volatility TEHRK I8 (AR ERIER
(expressed as weighted R 2 ISR
average volatility used in t85I)

the modelling under

Black Scholes model)
Option life (expressed as

weighted average

volatility used in the

modelling under

Black Scholes model)
Expected dividends
Risk-free interest rate

BRI (AEEIE
AARAZ IS
BKIESIR)

BETRR
R\ )

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.

2004
—penE
nB+E

HK$0.600 & 7T
HK$0.512 &1

55.79%

9.2 years £
3.85%
2.30%

BREAFERRBRR

ER L 2 BREDWEURS 2 A
FEDSERROBRE A FE
AR MIREBREZ AHRER
BAELE - BREZANEH
REBRAZBABE - EHREAC
BREURFITERZEY -

BREAFERRE

Date of grant

RHAH
20 May 6 September
2005 2005
—ETRF —FFIF
EA=+H HhAKAE
HK$0.510 7t HK$0.480 7T

HK$0.534 87T HK$0.487 &T

58.41% 53.16%

5.0 years 4 5.0 years £
3.73% 3.96%
2.50% 2.50%

JERHR MR Ty IR A B 1 R v (LA RE A b
ZIETFORBFERTE) - BIRE
RFE B AR HOR M8 2 A 7] 7R H
BELAE - A REBRBERE
AE e TBBARRZED Y
NHERBABRNEATE -

A 4 59 1 4 A 2 70 1
fi o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #% R R Kzt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS + ABITTIIR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends 28 EX -~ #ERRBRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEBPHrZ2BH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEEGEERS D 2 FYHEHE
balances of each component of the Group’s REGZHBEERGAETEFHR
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated Ao AR Tfl}”a'ﬁ%éﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁéi%ﬂﬁﬁi
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes FERZEBEFBEEHINOT
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company b/ AN T
Share-based
Share Share payment Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
B RORE ROSHEE ZitER ERAE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
firit FET AT TAT TET TET
At 1 April 2008 RZBE\EMA-A 9,599 90,926 3,315 (48,706) 55,134
Changes in equity for ~ —EENEZEZEE:
2008:
Total comprehensive loss ~ FR2AFELEE
for the year - - - (170) (170)
At 31 March 2009 R-BEhEF
=ZB=1+-H 9,699 90,926 3,315 (48,876) 54,964
At 1 April 2009 RZZZNEMAE-A 9,599 90,926 3,315 (48,876) 54,964
Changes in equity for ~ —BEhEEH
2009: 28
Issues of shares ki 28(c)(ii) 49914 1,920 - - 51,834
Share issue expenses RS 28(c)/(ii) - (2,220) -~ - (2,220)
Cancellation of share TR
options - - (142) 142 -
Total comprehensive FREEEEAE
loss for the year - - - (50,374) (50,374)
At 31 March 2010 E@:i;— FF
=ZR=t-H 59,513 90,626 3,173 (99,108) 54,204
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 28 BEX - RERRE(#)
(b) Dividend b) BRE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a EREVTEBRENEBE_Z—ZF
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: A=+ —BLEFEZRE(ZZEE
HK$Nil). NE - THT) °
(c) Share capital (c) B’=x
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREETRA
2010 2009
“B-BF “EENE
Number Number
of shares of shares
RAEE GEE
Note "000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$°000
it & FAT TR FAT
Authorised: T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 FRAE0.20ET
(2009: HK$0.01) each (Z2ENE:
0.017T) 2 X Rk 28(c)(i) 500,000 100,000 1,600,000 15,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ~ EZER CRTR
fully paid: HE:
At 1 April REA-A 959,880 9,599 959,880 9,599
Issues of shares Fkln 28(c){(i) 4,991,370 49,914 - -
5,951,250 59,513 959,880 9,599
Share consolidation Rt a (5,653,687) - - -
At 31 March W=A=1-H 297,563 59,513 959,880 9,599
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TERFBEEABEREDTES
receive dividends as declared from time to time KZIRE - WHESERRGN
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings RARBRE LR —F - TA
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally TERRARRZFBEES
with regard to the Company’s residual assets. BRZFHAL -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

SAEFEHIN

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Increase in authorised share capital and share
consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting on 31 August
2009, the Company’s authorised share capital
was increased from HK$15,000,000 divided into
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
to HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by creation
of additional 8,500,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

By an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting on 11 February
2010, every twenty then issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were
consolidated into one new ordinary share of
HK$0.20 each. Following the share consolidation
which became effective on 12 February 2010,
the Company’s authorised share capital is
HK$100,000,000 divided into 500,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each, of which
297,562,500 ordinary shares were in issue and
fully paid.

Issues of shares

On 23 September 2009, the Company issued
4,799,400,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
pursuant to the open offer made by the Company
on 1 September 2009 at a subscription price
of HK$0.01 per share on the basis of five open
offer shares for every one share held by the
qualifying shareholders on 31 August 2009. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$45,940,000
were used for repayment of debts and as general
working capital of the Group.

BB TTEIR)

28 EX - EERKRE @)

(c)

R (&)
(i) EIEERERRGE O

(iii)

HR-_ZENFNA=+—H
BT RRFR ARG L@BBL
TBRER  ARAZEATER
2&5@5 %41 8,500,000,000
f% & B m E0.01%8 Tt 2
@ A% - /15,000,000 TT
(% %1,500,000,0005% & B%
mELOIEB Lz & ﬁl&)i‘
50 100,000,000 T A&
10,000,000,000 % & f% ® &
0.01 BTz E@mk) -

EHN-_ZT—ZTF-_F+—H
BT HX%%%UﬁQiL}@
ZEBRBRER B _tKRE
BEEO.OIE T ZE KB %
TRARBTERRAEM A —
BREREE0208 T2 Y
BR-BEHEHRZ_ZE—F
F_A+-_BERE ARQ
A) 2 A FER A A 100,000,000
7 7t (% A&500,000,000 f% &
R EE0.20 Tz T @Ak -
H f 297,562,500 i% & @ I
BEBITREAR) -

RITRG

RZEBEZNFNAAZ=+=8"
AARBBEER-_ZZTNF
NA—RREZAREE N
AEBBRER=-_ZEZTNLFNA
=+ —HEBE —RRHERE
ARARBEERND 2 %
ZER00IABTZRBER
17 4,799,400,000 i% & I m (&
0.01 BTz LB - FIEFIE
F %8 49 45,940,000 JT F 1E
BEEGHURIEALTEER 2 —
EEED ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#&#k R KizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 7B * HLABITIIR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(iii) Issues of shares (Continued)

On 11 January 2010, Biochem Investments
Limited (“Biochem”),

of the Company, entered into a placing and

a substantial shareholder

subscription agreement with a placing agent
and the Company where 191,970,000 ordinary
shares in the Company were placed at a price
of HK$0.02 per share, and Biochem would
subscribe 191,970,000 new shares in the
Company at the same price of HK$0.02 per
share. The proceeds from the subscription, net of
the costs and expenses borne by the Company
in connection to the placement arrangement,
of approximately HK$3,674,000 were used
as general working capital of the Group. The
subscription was completed on 25 January 2010.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman
Islands where a company issues shares at a
premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum
equal to the aggregate amount of the value of
the premiums on their shares shall be transferred
to share premium account. The application of
the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or the dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company will be in
a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

28 EX - EERKRE (@)

(c) BA&(E)

(i) BTG (&)

RZEE-ZFTF - A+ —
A "RArRlZzETERE
Biochem Investments Limited
([ Biochem ) B2 i &5 X 28 J2 7R
RAIFIZEE KRB
It © 191,970,000 f% A A &
LTEREERER002E T
{8 1% B & - M Biochem i 1%
BR0.02ETZHEREBKR
f%191,970,000 A% 7~ 2 &) ¥ ik
o REEZ TS RIEFE
BRAR RIS ALE T HE AR 2 B
A R B X 1% ) #) /33,674,000
BT BIERER —REE
%  RER-_ZT—ZTF—A
“THRHEREK -

(d) RETEEREN

(i)

B EEFE

RIFFEHERRE - LT
i A ZR i (B S B A5 (B 3%
1Ty - A —FEERND
i BEEARES 2 R
ABEER - B AR EE
RXHAERERRVERE -

FRIEZBERZE DRSS B
% RARABAIREBEERB
RHEKIHNERER &
ATEERMDEERT AR
BIRR AN DRSS o
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through
exchange of shares under a group reorganisation
scheme on 4 November 2003. Further details are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 10
November 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policies set out in note 2(r).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

2(n) (ii).

SEZHAIN - ARETIITR)

28 EX -~ #ERBRE ®)

(d)

REMERBEN(E)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BOHEE

EHEREARRETEEK
ZHEEARRRER_-F
T=F+-AWNAZEEEA
FHEIFEE I P A B
RAERA RN GEEE =
B E—HHBENARFR
—EE=F+—-ATHTEZ
B ER

ELFE

E 5 B B

B REREL Y EN 2

8 o (B TR B B o) TR
B BRI -

RO 5#

B A 5 3K G848 15 AR 4R P R
2(n) (i) B B0 1 SR 2 E 7F
BRFERR TREEE A
B2 mE 2 BRI RIT
EEREHE 2 AFE-
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28 EX - EERKRE (@)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

REMERBEN(E)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (d)

HEEER G HE

(v) PRC statutory surplus reserve v)

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, which is a sino-foreign joint-venture
enterprise, is required to allocate at least 10%
of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to the general reserve until the reserve
has reached 50% of their registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. There was no
appropriation during the year (2009: HK$Nil).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be
used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. There was no
appropriation during the year (2009: HK$NIil).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare
and bonus fund is at the discretion of the board
of directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong
Kong reporting purposes, this appropriation is
charged to expenses and included in creditors

RIFEE R BB E A FOE
o $‘§I*F‘EJEPIWJ§5A A

(BFINEEDRE) AN R
BEERD KSR BMNED

10% £ — M EHE  BEEHEE
HEadfMEAR0% AL - — &
EEETRNEEE RIERA
ER R BIESIEME R -
FRATESR(ZZEZNF
%/%TE) °

CEEHRESETTNREHER
BERBIERMER - DECE
CEBRRESTIZTEKER
RESE CHIBHEEL - &R

BOR(ZZEZNF:TE
JT) °

BTN & EZEEES(E A BF
TEMBLARZEERN - D
REBTRMNMERES IR
TEMNBAREES ZRIEE
B - MBEZ2HME - o
FEERMXHIE  XatAREE

BHER BRI EER

and accrued charges in the consolidated financial A o
statements.
(e) Distributability of reserves (e) fREETDIRME
At 31 March 2010 and 2009, the aggregate amount RZE—ETFR_ZEZTNF=A
of reserves is not available for distribution to equity =+—H  RERASES QA
shareholders of the Company as computed in H REEBEIEDKTAARE
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman =EFEBA °

Islands.

m Annual Report 2009/10 4£ Ji $i &
SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 &2 3% A B A 5]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} #% R R Kizt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f&

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

()

Capital management

The Group’s primarily objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines adjusted net debt as total debt (which
includes bank loans, trade payables, other payables
and accrued charges, amount due to a related party,
amounts due to subsidiaries and obligations under
finance leases) less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
and amount due to a director.

During 2010, the Group’s strategy was to maintain an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the lower end of
the range 6% to 24%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

SHEEAN - HUETIIR)

28 EX -~ #ERBRE ®)

()

EXER

AEEEREAZTEZABRRRE
AEEFELEZRE N  AEET
ER B EMERTSEERER
B K AR 2 K - MR B FERK AR
RERE  AERREHOZRLAE
fl B za tERA & PR Fl) 2 o

AEEEGREPRRTREERLE
AT MERSBRERE®RBER T
AREHBEZRSEEKTFRRRE
AR5 P S A 2 e 3B 2 AR
T YAREERREHHEN
ZRIB(EH HIE -

MRITEREBEY  AEBEZKHEBE
BRBHEALFERAEARR
BoBME  AEBRELHE
BEEFRAEBAR(BEERTE
R ENEBESE - AMENFKA
REFTER BN —2BEEALR
B ENHBRARRELRRERE
AEE)RRE MRS EFEY - KRR
BARBEMAERI Y REMN—%
BEENE-

R-ZZF—FF AEEZRBE R
FCREEBFREERLER 6%
E24%HBE AR ZRBIEKF - B#
Fral B R - R E A HEITH K
N MBRREREER BEHEHR
RMESAHEEERE -
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28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued) 28 BEX - RERRE(#)
(f) Capital management (Continued) H EBEXEE(E)
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March 2010 RZE—ZFR_ZFTNF=HA
and 2009 was as follows: ST AZKEARERFEEHEAR
LRI
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—EB-=F ZZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current liabilities: MEBE:
Bank loans, secured RITER  AHEIF 13,626 22,546
Trade payables JERTE S 5IE 19,191 14,508
Other payables and accrued HEf B ERTE A
charges 10,059 9,203
Amount due to a related party JER—RBE AT IR 887 887
Obligations under finance leases BhERE S IE 791 1,141
44,554 48,285
Non-current liabilities: SEMEBBE:
Obligations under finance leases L& EAE — 791
Total debt BERERa 44,554 49,076
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R RE RS EEY (39,553) (29,988)
Adjusted net debt RARBEKFHE 5,001 19,088
Total equity =R 75,778 54,986
Amount due to a director EN—REEFHIA 14,306 24,836
Adjusted capital KARERXR 90,084 79,822
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio EEBEBFEHERL R 6% 24%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is AARKEMEMFPB QR HAEE
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. SFONRME AN B E ©
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29 Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a
credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit
risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30
to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers. As such,
management considers the aggregate risks arising
from the possibility of credit losses are limited and to
be acceptable.

29 #@WMI A
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29 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit risk
but to a lesser extent. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as 8%
(2009: 7%) and 25% (2009: 25%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively. Management does
not expect any significant losses from trade debtors
that have not been provided for other than impairment
loss on bad and doubtful debt as set out in note 18(b).

The Group’s other receivables at 31 March 2010
comprise mainly advances to business partners,
advances to staff, trade deposits, prepayment for
acquisition of a trademark amounting to approximately
HK$7,800,000 (2009: HK$12,089,000). Should the
counter parties default in settling the payments and/
or providing services, the Group may suffer financial
losses. The directors consider that these amounts are
fully recoverable.

In respect of the amounts due from related parties
at 31 March 2010 amounting to approximately
HK$16,478,000 (2009: HK$21,502,000), the Group may
suffer financial losses if the related parties default in
settling the payments. However, the directors consider
that these amounts are fully recoverable.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as
the majority of counterparties are financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit rating agencies and stated-controlled financial
institutions with good reputations.

29 €I HE®)

(a)
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29 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company in favour of its subsidiary as set out in note
21, the Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

SHEEAN - HUETIIR)

29 €I HE®)
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(b)
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29 Financial instruments (Continued) 29 E@MIA®
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) TEBELEKE)

The following table details the remaining contractual TERFMLAEBERARFSRAE
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s REERZHTEHREE - ik
and the Company’s financial liabilities which are based AURRERE(BREERBELHTE
on the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including S(MFEIEREHR Eziﬁﬁﬂ
interest payments, computed using contractual rates FTE BT RAEE KRR
or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance AR A Mz xR AMGRH ¢

sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay:

(i) The Group (i) FEH
2010 2009
t2-%% EBENE
Total Total More than
contractual contractual 1 year hut less
undiscounted  Within 1 year undiscounted ~ Within year  than 2 years
Carrying cash flow ~or on demand Carrying cash flow o on demand 2 years
amownt  AERRLR 1ERg, anont RERRER 15 1L

FEE  Eafum EEX FEE  EQNEE  AEEX 2%
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0 AKSOOD  HKSOID KOO HKSTOD

7 7.7 74 FET i FET 7T
Bank loans, secured GRS 13,626 (13,626) (13,626) 2546 (22,546) (22,546 -
Trade payables EREAE 19,191 (19,191) (19,191) 14508 (14,508 (14,508 -
Other payables and EREAZER
accrued charges g 10,059 (10,059) (10,059) 9,203 (9,209) (0,203 -
Amount due to a director EN-%E508 14,306 (14,306) (14,306) 2.8% (24,836) (24,836 -
Amount due to arelaied party  EF—£EEATHE 887 (887) (887) 867 (67) (87) -
Obligations under finance leases BT EAE 191 (791) (791) 1,894 (1982) (1141) (791)
58,860 (58,860) (58,860) 73474 (1391 311 (191
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29 Financial instruments (Continued) 29 SR I A
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEBESER(E)
(i) The Company (i) ERa
2010 2009

2-%F ZEINE
Total Within Total Within
contractual 1 year contractual 1 year
undiscounted oron undiscounted oron
Carrying cash flow demand Garrying cash flow demand
amount  REERE 15/ amount  ABEEE 15

FEE RERNAE JEEX REE REGNME SAREEX
HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AT AT AT TAT TAT TAT

Other payables and EHERTER
accrued charges B ER 1,076 (1,076) (1,076) 923 (923) (923)
Amount due to a director  BR—ZEZ5UE 14,489 (14,489) (14,489) 25,174 (25,174) (25,174)
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERTHEATIZE 3,540 (3,540) (3,540) 3,852 (3.852) (3.852)
19,105 (19,105) (19,105) 29949 (29.949) (29.949)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIZEER:
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank AEBEZHERBEEEEFRIT
deposits, bank loans and obligations under finance T BITEREBEREFIE-
leases. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the EEEEDRNSAEREAZRER
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value ENREBEAFEMNERR - &
interest rate risk respectively. The Group does not use SEVEFASRITET AL FF
financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate EREfg o  REBEEEBEEERZA
risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by EABEEN () °
management is set out in (i) below.
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIFEHE
The following table details the interest rate profile TRAMAEEREERFR
of the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits FRE (R 1T 17 RORL MY 5 2
less interest-bearing financial liabilities) at the BE)2FEBEE -

balance sheet date.
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29 Financial instruments (Continued) 29 €RT R
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) F=ERE(E)
(i) Interest rate profile (Continued) (i) FFEHEE)
The Group
PN ]
2010 2009
—E-Ef “EThF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERFIE BRI
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
FET FET
Variable rate deposits: FEER
Bank deposits and RITERKIRTT
cash at bank Be 0.36% 22,935 0.36% 20,290
Fixed rate deposit: FEBIFR:
Bank deposits RITER N/A - 2.25% 5,678
Fixed rate borrowings: TERMEE:
Bank loans, secured RITER HEM 5.10% (13,626) 5.42% (22,546)
Obligations under BB EHE
finance leases 4.72% (791) 4.72% (1,932)
Total net deposits FFes 8,518 1,490
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SEEDH
At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that a general R-Z—ZFF=ZA=+—8"
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest fhEtFIERER EF T 100
rates, with all other variables held constant, would TIE S RETA H A& 5
decrease/increase the Group’s loss after tax and TR IR ER
accumulated losses by approximately HK$85,000 ZBRBEBEEBEERRTEEY
(2009: increase/decrease the Group’s loss after 85,0008 L (Z T NF : 4
tax and accumulated losses by approximately mn/ B ARER 2 bR % EE
HK$15,000). Other components of equity would 25 E1E 4150008 7T) °
not be affected (2009: HK$Nil) by the changes in Hith RO BT EXFE
interest rates. BB (ZTTNF: T
JL) °
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29 Financial instruments (Continued) 29 EWMI A

FRERE)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) BBEZH(E)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments

LIBRE SRR R
BEREEHREREER
REZBFEZFTESRT
B FIERBAZBEMNET
100 RAEBAK T EREEH T

in existence at that date. The 100 basis point —FEH R ERE AR AT RE S 1R

increase or decrease represents management’s %@JZ#% o ZEEZNFTNE
assessment of a reasonably possible change in FEREEEITHMN o
interest rates over the period until the next annual
palance sheet date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2009.
(d) Foreign currency risk (d) HpEEm s
The Group is not exposed to significant currency AR ARIBHHEE - A - BERH

XTBUNEBEBZNEERRE

risk as most sales, income, purchases and expenses

are denominated in the functional currency of the il » MAEEWEATENEEER
operations to which they relate. fax o

(e) Fair values (e) 2F¥E
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not BRI ANKEER-_T—F
materially different from their fair values at 31 March FRZFENF=ZA=FT—HZA

2010 and 2009. FTEITESAZE 2 2BHE

AR

(f) Estimation of fair values ()

Xt ERIAR
RZEBTERRBEK °

The following summarises the major methods and SEERE
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

(i) Interest-bearing finance lease liabilities () FEHEHESRE
NFEGARREUSHRIA
Z BTSN RALIR 2 KRR
{ﬁfmifﬁfﬁ °

The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.
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29 Financial instruments (Continued) 29 €RT R
(f)  Estimation of fair values (Continued) H AFEMFE)

(ii) Financial guarantees

(i) FIBER

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not

EREMBRERZAFEDZ
ZEURB 2 AFRHUWEZ
ER(MERBSERENE
E o R2EREME  IAR
BERAEBERERL TR
B2 BHEMNE  BERALEE
FERER T EUELZ 5=
EH LR (MBEH BB FHE
A SEfhEt) o

been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made.

30 Commitments 30 A&iE
(@) Capital commitment outstanding at 31 March 2010 not (a MZZE—ZFFZA=+—HEFEM
provided for in the financial statements was as follows: RO RREE 2 ERNFEED
T

The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—B-BF —TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Authorised and contracted for EEERETA
— capital injection into a jointly — [ AEREEEE
controlled entity EABAR 6,000 6,000
— capital injection into a subsidiary — [AI—EHBATIEAER 568 -
— acquisition of property, plant and — UXBEYEE  HeR2 & 254
equipment 1,672 2,378
8,240 8,378
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AE AN

30 Commitments (Continued)

(b)

At 31 March 2010,
commitments of its jointly controlled entities amounting
to approximately HK$7,000 (2009: HK$166,000).

the Group’s share of capital

At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

BB TSR )

30 AE®w)

(o)

RNR-ZZE—ZFE=A=+—0" K
SEEGHEEEFREZEHEREZ2ER
AEPELDT00B T(ZEE L F

166,000/87T) ©

R-F-FF=A=+—0 17
Mz EeRE ARRERS R
(DN

The Group
AEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZETNF
Properties Properties
and and
display display
locations locations
Y%K Equipment Y%K Equipment
BB B BRRAE B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Within 1 year 1R 16,689 31 17,804 28
After 1 year but 1EZE5FER
within 5 years 35,259 3 28,377 —
After 5 years 5% 1% 10,376 — 17,717 —
62,324 34 63,898 28
The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties, REERBKEHEBRTETYWE
display locations and items of equipment under )?'&T\LLE& SHEIEE 2&MEA -
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial E—RVTBE—ZE2+F AIRE
period of one to ten years, with an option to renew the NEEFERAEETHE - He
lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments BEEME=FEMN M&B%?ﬁi%

He - SIEREEFIARESR -

are usually increased every two to three years to reflect
market rental. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.
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31

32

Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2010, the Company has issued a corporate
guarantee of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$17,033,000) (2009: RMB15,000,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$17,033,000) to a bank in respect of
banking facilities granted to a subsidiary as 51% owned by
the Group (see note 21).

The Directors do not consider it is probable that a claim
will be made against the Group or the Company under the
guarantee. The maximum liability of the Group and Company
at the balance sheet date under the guarantee issued is
the facilities drawn down by the subsidiaries of HK$Nil
(2009: HK$17,033,000) and HK$NiIl (2009: HK$17,033,000)
respectively.

Material related party transactions and
balances

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 7 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
other benefits

Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plan

Total remuneration is included in “Staff costs” (see note
6(b)).

HE RN EMET

FIERFRIRET IR

31

32

HAEE

R-ZZT-—ZTE=ZA=+—0  AQFE
RET - HHAEBREBE1% 2HMEBA
RIZBITRVE R —RRITREHEOARYE
15,000,000 (8 % 7 4917,033,000 /% 7T )
(ZE2EZNF : AR 15,000,000 © 8%
M #)17,083,000% 7T ) 2 A Al ELR (R K
FE21)

EERA  BERERAAEESARARIR
HERRZATREMETK - REER - AEH
RARBIREBEZRLHERZESEED R
AHRBARRIZBESTETL(ZEEN
% :17,083,0008 L) REBTL(ZEE
JLEF £ 17,033,000 7T) °

ERBEATRZ RER

(@ FEEBAEMS

AEETZEEABZME (B1EH
HTABEBECNTARREF 2K
AEMESHHBEEN TR E

BZHEBE)NT :
2010 2009
—E2-2F —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
5,646 5,592
70 60
5,716 5,652

SN EEEET AI8 TR (B M5
6(b)) °
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32 Material related party transactions and 32 EABEALIRZRERR )
balances (Continued)
(b) Other related party transactions (b) HMEEALRES
In addition to the financing arrangements as mentioned B B sE21 24 Fr i v B B & HE
in notes 21 and 24, the Group entered into the following Gh s REBRFRNEEITUATERLR
material related party transactions during the year: BEATRS .
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E2-ZF ZZTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Sales of goods to a minority m—HIOERFEEEER
shareholder 8,497 5,335
Sales of goods to a minority shareholder were made at M—R L ERREEERNIERE
similar terms as the Group grants to other customers. ERTHAME P 2 ALEREL -
Balances with related parties are disclosed in the BARAE AL 24 ﬁ?ﬁ’\\ﬁﬁﬁ%?\%&
balance sheets and in notes 15, 16, 19 and 23. R ER RN FE15 16~ 19 R 23H#
o
33 Comparative figures 33 LEEBEF
As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), HREABEGHEMEIR(ZEZ L
Presentation of financial statements, certain comparative FRAEE])  BETHBRHEFEEAE - U
figures have been adjusted to conform to current year's RAEXRFEEZ2NARN  RIgEE@EE
presentation and to provide comparative amounts in respect TE-EF-A-+—HILFEHAEE
of items disclosed for the first time in the year ended 31 BHEZURESHE - ZERRIE—FHE
March 2010. Further details of these developments are RIS HE -

disclosed in note 3.
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used
in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial position and operating
results. Some of the accounting policies require the Group
to apply estimates and judgements, on matters that are
inherently uncertain. The critical accounting judgements
in applying the Group’s accounting policies are described
below.

(a) Depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charge for the property, plant and
equipment, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

34 ErET{AET R

EEERAASESHBRRREAZAE
et RABEASEE Pk kG &%
BENEATE - BOFTBRERERE
EEAE ETREE 2 FEEL G RA
B - ERAASESTECR 2 BESHE
BT o

(a) WE

AEBEEEGFFGEERRETE
WE - BERREB AR A ERF
HIRAARITERM - WA IR
BRMERUZYE  BERRE
ERTEAFHZBELREL
A R BT 8 K s 5 F R EE KR
TEBRRBZITEMELEAR
1t o s I8 A B D 1 SE A AT 4R
B REEEREMTERR =X
HiG M MORE BRI E 2%
MBS IERRE B E ©
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment,
investments in subsidiaries, interests in jointly
controlled entities and goodwill, recoverable amount
of the asset needs to be determined. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the net selling price and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling
price because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

SHEEAN - HUETIIR)

34 ErEtfhET Rl

(b)

A

ERAIGEARETYE  HERR
B RMEBRARZEKRE  RARE
HEE e LB R 2R EE
BE AETEEAWEES®E - A
WesEAFEEREREEME
ZEEE - HARREFELZITSRE
ROEBER AU - i3 DA ERE (S T
EE-BEEAEERN BEEL
ZERReREMBAEZHERAE A
HEXFKRFRBENACEER
BIELERHE - AEBEER 1)
A BER ENS 2 B R EETE AT Bl & 58
BREOBESHE  BRERAELEAX
FRRIELGFTREEEERLE
PXAFIEE R TER -

RERREBBDREESTE SR
A AR e 0 AT Ko AT Wi B 1 B A5 7 AT
HREE - EENFHEERETP
ZEEBERFLERIEHAE
TRE 2 HH -

ERREBRZBRGEELAFE
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34 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future profit will be
available against which the unused tax credit can be
utilised, management’s judgement is required to assess
the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analyses, projections of expected future
saleability of goods and management experience
and judgement. Based on this review, write-down of
inventories will be made when the carrying amounts of
inventories decline below their estimated net realisable
value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

34 EETAET R E )

(c)

(d)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB RS © HABITTIIR)

34 Accounting estimates and judgements 34 STHAFTRAE w2

(Continued)

(e) Share-based payments (e) MBI
The estimate of the fair value of the share options BEYRENHEMEERZEEZE
granted to employees and other eligible participants Rz AT EMF T R EEGERD
measured by professional valuers and the directors’ RERREHFENGSE - WIEHE
estimate based on the Black Scholes model with AR B B B R AT R R = R iR
modification to reflect the impact of vesting periods and BEBECHE - Ll 2 BRI
exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy A ERBENERZ RO HRR
of the above estimations could affect the amount of SEF o

share-based payments transactions recognised in profit

or loss.

35 Possible impact of amendments, new 3B HE_FE—FF=A=1T—H
standards and interpretations issued but LFEEEMAEERERZE
not yet effective for the year ended 31 AR FEARAREUREL
March 2010 =4
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, %ZIZ!SQMR#EEVF‘J?‘EIH;@ E/a EETRD
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new REEEMEZEAERE_T—ZTF=H
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for :+*E¢¢fﬁ$$xﬁlﬂ$ﬂﬁ%#&i‘%ﬂ
the year ended 31 March 2010 and which have not been RN ZAERTA ~ R ke o

adopted in these financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 5& 7B * HLABITIIR)

35 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2010 (Continued)

Of these developments, the following relate to matters that
may be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial
statements:

HKAS 27 (Revised)
EE gt ERE275R
(KB {E3T)

e KB BT HRR

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations
BRI ELER EBA6
S35 ({ERT)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

35 BE-_ZE-ZTF=-A=1+—H

LHtFEFECHEMGBEARERZE
AR FERRZEAEELE
716 )]

PRS- AN RR R EARE XL R
MBHmREBEBFE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
ERIN=EF e el <
R RS

1 July 2009
—RENFLA-E

1 July 2009
—ETNFEA—H

Improvements to
HKFRSs (2009)
EBMGRELER 2 o
(ZZTNHF)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
B GRHERIFE24557
(&AEET)

Improvements to
HKFRSs (2010)
BB ELER 2 o
(ZZF—FF)

Improvements to HKFRSs (including amendments to
HKFRS 8, HKASs 1, 7, 17, 18 and 36)

FEVHHRELEL 2 E (BREBVHRELERESN

EBSTERER  FB75% - 1758 1855 5B 365R
CHENS)

Related party disclosures
BEALTHER

Improvements to HKFRSs (including amendments to
HKAS 1, HKFRSs 3 and 7)

EAVBRELED 2 (BREEBGERIE 15
BB ELERE 35 R ETIRIEFT )

1 July 2009 or
1 January 2010

—ETNFEA—HK

—=-FTF—H—H

1 January 2011
—T——F—H—H

1 January 2011
—T—%F—H—H

The Directors have confirmed that the Group is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of
these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that their adoption is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

EE0HER ASBELEAERE LB
AR~ FRERI N R B R E A TR TR A
EECFE &5 ARERREM LT
BREFA -~ FE LR EAARE
REFELMBIRABREATE KRS
PR
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